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PART 1: INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW  

A. Foreword by the Mayor  

Section 121(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 demands that “every 

municipality and every municipal entity must for each financial year prepare an annual report in 

accordance with this chapter (chapter 12 of the MFMA). Coupled to that, section 46 of the 

Municipal System Act, 32 of 2000, 46(1) demand that a municipality must prepare for each 

financial year a performance report and such annual performance report must form part of the 

municipality’s annual report, in terms of section 46(2).  It is in terms of the above pieces of 

legislation that I present before you the 2011/2012 annual report.  

This annual report is an account of the Tsolwana municipality’s achievements in the year under 

review and with any rigorous instruments it does not hesitate in pointing out where the 

municipality has fallen short.  

Our main objective as Tsolwana municipality has always been to provide quality services to all 

our communities. In doing that we are guided by our Integrated Development Plan which 

focuses among other things provision of free basic services to the poor households, eradication 

of poverty, and provision and maintenance of recreational facilities to our young people. 

I would like to mention some few critical challenges that we faced during the year under review 

as follows: 

• We have been seriously affected by the low revenue- base which is hampering our 

ability to deliver quality service to our people. This has rendered the municipality to be 

grant dependent for financing capital projects. This is exacerbated by high loses in 

electricity sales as resulting tempering with electricity meters especially in Tarkasatd and 

Hofmeyr. 

• Staff turnover especially at senior management level, has also affected us negatively and 

that has resulted in delaying our march towards a clean audit report. 

• We are critically looking at our planning model which is not making an impact to the 

communities we serve due to huge backlogs versus limited resources. 
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• We need to improve more on public participation which must be sustained mainly to 

convince the communities to pay for services and improve our relations with our 

communities. 

• The year under review was not an easy one for various reasons but we are proud of 

achievements we have recorded including the following: 

o Creation of approximately 1000 job opportunities through programs like EPWP, 

CIP and Greening and Beautification 

o Renovation of Hofmeyr Town Hall 

o Building of Community Hall in Thembalethu village 

o Greening and beautification of Parks and Townships 

o Upgrading of internal in the rural areas 

o Bring council closer to the people by providing ward offices 

o Filling of two critical senior managers positions and appointment of traffic 

officer 

Can I be the first one to recognise regress in our audit opinion in as far as our financial 

statements are concerned. The Office of the Auditor General expressed a QUALIFIED audit 

opinion which means one step backwards compared to last year’s unqualified opinion. This is 

but only a setback in our march towards clean audit in 2014 to which we remain committed and 

focused.  

In conclusion, may I thank my fellow councillors for their support and commitment to council 

business, the Municipal Manager and his staff for the commitment and willingness to improve in 

all that they are doing and the ward committees and the members of the public for always being 

there for us. 

 

Lastly, I wish to further commit this council towards Good and Clean Governance. 

 

Thank you  

 

………………………………………. 

Mayor 
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B. The yearly program priorities statement by the Municipal Manager  

 

Report is published in terms of Chapter 12 of the Finance Management Act 53 of 2003 and also 

covers the requirement of section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act. 

Tsolwana Local municipality strives to achieve service excellence in all areas of operations and 

this report attempts to give a substantial insight into the workings of the municipality. 

The year under review, ending on the 30 June 2012 has not been an easy year given the fact that 

it is the first year of the council that was elected on the 18 May 2011. What made matters worse 

for the municipality is the resolve by the council and management to do away with the tag of 

being regarded as low capacity municipality by deciding to implement the Generally Recognized 

Accounting standards two years before we were expected to comply with the requirements of 

GRAP. For the year under review the municipality reported and was audited in terms of 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practise. Unfortunately, our audit opinion as expressed by the 

Office of the Auditor General regressed from an Unqualified to a Qualified opinion. A number of 

reasons including , two vacancies at senior management level ( Chief Financial Officer and 

Technical Services Manager) contributed to this situation. We have since filled these two 

positions with competent individuals and hope to continue with our resolve to run a clean 

administration. 

The management has noted with concern the 10% decrease in performance from 79% in 

2010/11 to 69% in 2011/12. Be that as it may, we pride ourselves for having spent almost 100% 

of our Municipal Infrastructure Grant allocation within the (local government) financial year with 

the exception of the Hofmeyr Hall and Thembalethu which were finalised subsequent to year 

end. The projects undertaken included the following: 

Ward No. Project Name Budget 

1 Construction of a Sport field in Zola village R1 829 810.32 

2 Rehabilitation of access roads in Mitford village R1 829 810.32 

3 Construction of a Community Hall in Thembalethu 

village 

R1 829 810.32 

4 Provision of Streetlights in Matyhantya R1 829 810.32 

5 Renovation of Hofmeyr Town Hall R1 829 810.32 
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Lastly, I am aware of the 10% decrease in performance when comparing 2010/11 and 2011/12 

financial years. This decrease was caused particularly by vacancies in two management position 

i.e. Chief Financial Officer and the Technical Services Manager. It is our resolve as management 

that this situation has to be turned around and with full complement at management level that 

can be achieved. My appreciation goes to the council for political guidance and all of my staff for 

remaining focused and committed to our cause.   

 

 

……………………………………………. 

Municipal Manager 
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C. Overview of the Municipality 

(a) Geographic and demographic profile 

Tsolwana Municipality is situated within Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM) of Eastern 

Cape Province. It is bounded on the east by Inkwanca and Lukhanji Municipalities, on the 

west by Inxuba Yethemba Municipality, on the north by Ukhahlamba District Municipality 

and on the south by Amathole District Municipality. Tsolwana Municipality is an 

amalgamation of the following areas. 

� Former Tarkastad TLC and TRC (Republic of South Africa) 

� Former Hofmeyr TLC and TRC (Republic of South Africa) 

� Former Ntabethemba TRC (Republic of Ciskei) 

Tsolwana Municipality has two main urban nodes, Tarkastad and Hofmeyr, which are 

surrounded by commercial farmland in the former Tarkastad and Hofmeyr areas and about 

11 rural villages scattered within the former Ntabethemba area, including Thornhill, Mitford, 

Rocklands, Tendergate, etc). Tarkastad, the Municipal seat, is located along the Queenstown 

and Cradock R61 road. It is roughly 64km from Queenstown and 81km from Cradock. From 

the two major airports in the province, Tarkastad is 365km form Port Elizabeth and 257 from 

East London. 
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DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE 

This section outlines the demographic profile of the Tsolwana municipality. In an attempt to improve 

and update statistical planning information various sources have been used and referenced to 

inform the analysis in this section. 

Population  

The total population living in Tsolwana is estimated to be 30952 people and 8493 households 

(Global Insight: 2008). Using these estimates, the average household size is approximately 4 persons 

per household. 

The trends experienced by Tsolwana during the period 1996 -2008 show a steady decline similar to 

that experienced by the Chris Hani district over the same period.  

Tsolwana is a largely rural municipality with the majority of its households residing in rural 

settlements. At least about 27% live in urban and peri-urban settlements. Another 16% are farm 

dwellers.  The figure below illustrates this point further. 
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Figure 1: Household spatial distribution 

Population gender & age distribution 

Tsolwana population make-up is similar to that experienced by the country with 48% males and 52% 

females. The majority of population are females (51%) compared to males (49%). The fact that 

females constitute the majority of population suggests that targeted strategies should be 

implemented to ensure effective participation of women in the processes of municipal planning and 

implementation. The following figure shows age distribution patterns within the Tsolwana 

population. 

 

Figure 2: Population Age distribution (Global Insight: 2008) 
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The figure above shows that Tsolwana has a very youthful population. There are more people in the 

school leaving ages of 15 – 19 years. Since the majority of local population is youth, the municipality 

will have to prioritise youth development programmes. 

SOCIO-ECONOMIC CONTEXT 

Overview of economic development in Tsolwana   

Tsolwana has no clear LED strategy to guide its interventions. This is despite the fact that LED is 

identified as the second most important focus area for 2011/12. A project has been identified for the 

development and implementation of a LED strategy in 2011/12. Funding is being sort from sources 

such as DM, DPLG, ECDC, SEDA and DEDEA. 

Economic Development Indicators 

Gross Development Product 

The GDP of Tsolwana has steadily grown from about 72 million for the two towns of Tarkastad and 

Hofmeyr in 1996 to approximately 142 million by end of 2008 (Global Insight) and currently 

estimated at 191 million by end 2009. The following figure shows GDP growth trends over the last 

decade. 

 

Tress Index  

Tress index is a useful indicator of progress and depth scale in an economy. The Tress index indicates 

the level of concentration or diversification in an economy. It is estimated by ranking the nine 

sectors according to their contributions to GVA or employment, adding the values cumulatively and 
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indexing them. A tress index of zero represents a totally diversified economy, while a number closer 

to 100 indicates a high level of concentration.  

Tsolwana economy is poorly diversified when compared to that of the Chris Hani region. The tress 

index for Tsolwana is 71.94 while that of Chris Hani remains 65.12.  

Based on the above figure it can be deduced that Tsolwana has a highly concentrated economy with 

Agriculture and community services being highly dominant contributors. This situation is 

unsustainable and needs to be reversed by increasing investments that will unleash the locked 

potential in other important local sectors like Manufacturing, Tourisms and informal sector. 

Location Quotient 

In order for us to improve our economy it is important to consider improving our location quotient. 

Location quotient is an important indicator of the economy’s competitive advantage. It indicates the 

extent to which an economy has a competitive advantage in a particular sector.  

When comparing the nine broad economic sectors, Tsolwana can compete relatively better if the 

local economy can concentrate productivity on Agriculture and Community services. This is 

notwithstanding the need to diversify contributions of other underperforming sectors mentioned 

earlier. 

The figure below shows that our economy can compete in two important sectors such as Agriculture 

and Community services. 
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Poverty GAP 

The gini coefficient is a useful indicator of income inequality. It measures income inequality, and 

often varies from 0 (in the case of perfect equality where all households earn equal income) to 1 (in 

the case where one household earns all the income and other households earn nothing). In practice 

the coefficient is likely to vary from approximately 0,25 to 0,70. Tsolwana has a gini coefficient of 

0.57 by 2008 (Global Insight) 

Household Income Distribution 

Household income is a useful proxy for understanding levels of income poverty. Approximately 23% 

of households earn a gross income of no more than R1,500 per month.  Another 16% earn between 

R1500 and R2500 per month. This implies that nearly 40% of households could be deemed as 

indigent. That leaves the municipality with just about 60% of households that they can provide 

services to and expect to pay. Below is a figure illustrating a household income distribution pattern 

within Tsolwana municipality. 

 

Unemployment 

Unemployment is a major development challenge in Tsolwana. According to research done by Global 

Insight, unemployment in Tsolwana is estimated to be higher than that of the country but lower 

than that of the district and EC Province respectively. It is estimated to be about 40% (using the 

official definition).  
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About 18% of the population in 2008 is economically active. The economically active population 

(EAP) is defined as the number of persons that are able and willing to work between the ages of 15 

and 65. It includes both employed and unemployed persons. 

In Tsolwana, the distribution of unemployment is largely concentrated in the Hofmeyr areas when 

comparing the two urban centres. The figure below gives a comparative view of unemployment 

distribution within Tsolwana core urban centres as well as between Tsolwana and the district, 

province and country, respectively. 

 

Formal Employment by sectors 

According to Global insight statistics of 2008, Community services have surpassed Agriculture as the 

main source of employment. It accounts for 50% while Agriculture contributes about 40% of 

employment opportunities. 

Finance sector is the third largest employment industry in the local economy. It accounts for 14.1% 

of existing jobs. This situation is not sustainable and there is a need to develop as part of the LED 

strategy, dedicated strategies to diversify the economy and to boost growth in other important 

sectors that show potential. Tourism is one of those sectors. 
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Figure 3: Formal employment by sectors 

Human Development Index 

The human development index (HDI) is a useful mechanism to gauge the level of development of a 

local economy. The HDI is a composite, relative index that attempts to quantify the extent of human 

development of a municipality (area). It is based on measures of life expectancy, literacy and 

income.  

The HDI is calculated as the average of indices of life expectancy at birth, adult literacy and per 

capita income. For a municipality to be well developed, it must a 

chieve a HDI closer to 1. The closer the figure is to 1 the better the lifestyle. The figure below gives a 

comparative HDI for Tsolwana. 
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Tsolwana has a human development index of 0,51 for Tarkastad and 0.44 for Hofmeyr. In 

comparison to the district as a whole Tarkastad enjoys better lifestyle than the average district areas 

while Hofmeyr lags behind the average area in the district. This point reinforces the view that there 

is higher concentration of poverty and declining lifestyle in Hoffmeyr than in the Tarkastad and 

surrounding areas. There is a need therefore to design targeted interventions for LED to alleviate 

this strife in Hoffmeyr areas. 

General macro-level challenges of the local economy 

The Tsolwana economy is not growing at optimal levels and this must be thoroughly investigated 

and addressed as part of the planned process for establishing a comprehensive LED strategy.  
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PART 2: KPA ACHIEVEMENTS REPORT 

CHAPTER 1: INSTITUTIONAL TRANSFORMATION AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT : 

KPA 1 

Chapter 1: Human resource and other organization management –KPA 1 

 

 

1.1 Presentation of the organizational structure (approved organogram) 

The municipality developed and adopted a new organogram which caters 179 posts. The change in 

the organogram was prompted by new coming into existence of new units which were not there in 

the previous year. A total of 69 of these posts are vacant due to budgetary constraints and will be 

filled as their need becomes more pressing and money becomes available. 

The performance contracts of s57 managers were signed and submitted to the MEC for Local 

Government within the prescribed time. 

   

1.2 Staff development initiatives during the Financial Year 

The department of Local Government assisted the municipality to develop its Human Resources plan 

which was later adopted. The municipality is gradually implementing the even though there are 

some challenges. A workplace skills plan is developed and submitted on annual basis to the Local 

Government Seta.  The WSP outlines training programme which the municipality will embark upon 

during that financial year. The major challenge in this regard is that due to the size of the 

municipality its contribution towards the skills development levy is also small and therefore grants 

are also small.   

1.3 Key HR statistics per functional area  

 

1. Full time staff complement per functional area (examples are given below) 

a. MM/Section 57 and Line Managers 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved and 

budgeted 

posts per 

position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 
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1 Municipal Manager 1 Yes  1 0 

2 Chief Finance Officer 1 Yes 0 1 

3 Corporate Services 

Manager 

1 Yes 1 0 

4 Community Services 

Manager 

1 Yes 1 0 

5 Technical Services 

Manager 

1 Yes 0 1 

 Total  5  4 4 

 

b)Top Structure 

Office of the Municipal Manager 

 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved and 

budgeted 

posts per 

position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Personal Assistant 1 Yes 1 0 

2 Senior Internal auditor 1 Yes 0 1 

3 Agricultural Development 

Officer 

1 Yes 1 0 

4 LED and Tourism Officer 1 Yes  1 0 

5 SPU Coordinator 1 Yes 1 0 

6 Communications and 

Marketing Officer 

1 No  0 1 

7 HIV/AIDS Coordinator 1 No  1 0 

8 Spatial Planning Officer 1 No  0 1 
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9 Customer Care/Public 

Participation Practitioner 

1 yes 0 1 

10 Total  9  5 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

c) Corporate services department 

 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved 

posts per 

position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Secretary  1 Yes  1 0 

2 Manager: Human 

Resources 

1 No  0 1 

3 Human Resources Officer 1 Yes  1 0 

4 Senior Admin Officer 1 No  0 1 

5 OHS Officer 1 No  0 1 

6 Labour Relations Officer 1  No  0 1 

7 Skills Development and 

EE Officer 

1 No 0 1 

8 Human Resources Clerk 1 No  0 1 

9 Records and Archives 1 Yes  1 0 
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Clerk 

10 Receptionist  1 Yes  1 0 

 Total 10  4 6 

 

 

d) Budget and Treasury Office 

 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved posts 

per position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Budget and Treasury  

Officer 

1 Yes  1 0 

2 Secretary  1 No  0 1 

3 Accountant: Budget & 

Treasury  

1 No  0 1 

4 Revenue Clerks 2 Yes  2 0 

5 Snr Debtors Clerk 1 yes 0 1 

6 Cashiers  5 yes 5 0 

7 Free Basic Services Clerk 1 No  0 1 

8 Meter Readers 4 Yes  3 1 

9 SNR Accountant 

Expenditure & SCM 

1 No 0 1 

10 Accountant ( Income) 1 Yes  1 0 

11 Snr Clerk: Creditors  1 Yes  1 0 

12 Snr Clerk : Salaries 1 No  0  1 

13 Snr Clerk: Grants, Asset 1 No  0 1 
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and Vat management 

14 Clerk Creditors: Grants  1 Yes 1 0 

15 Supply Chain 

Management Officer 

1 Yes  1 0 

16 Stores controller 1 No  0 1 

17 SCM Clerk 1 Yes  1 0 

18 Asset management clerk 1 Yes  1 0 

 total 26  17 9 

 

 

e) Community Services 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved posts 

per position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Librarian 1 No  0 1 

2 Library Assistants 2 Yes  2 0 

3 

4 

Superintendent : waste 

management 

1 No  0 1 

5 

6 

Foreman : Community 

Services 

2 Yes  2 0 

7 Security Officers 4 No  0 4 

8 Driver : supervisor 4 Yes 4 0 

9 Caretaker: community 

halls 

1 No  0 1 

10 Cleaners : libraries 3 Yes 2 1 
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11 Pound  Master 1 No  0 1 

12 Cemeteries Inspector 1 No  0 1 

13 General workers: refuse, 

parks & cemeteries 

25 Yes  25  

14 Chief Traffic Officer 1 No  0 1 

15 Administration Officer: 

Enatis 

1 No  0 1 

16 Cashier : Enatis 1 No  0 1 

17 Traffic Officers: Law 

Enforcement 

2 No  0 2 

18 Traffic Officers: licence 

testing 

2 No  0 2 

19 Traffic Officers 1 No  0 1 

20 Pit Assistant 1 No  0 1 

 Total  53  35 18 

 

b. Staff complement in the technical services 

 Approved positions (e.g 

MM-S57 etc...)                  

Number of 

approved posts 

per position 

Indicate 

whether 

budgeted or 

not 

Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Area Manager: Water 

Services 

1 Yes  1 0 

2 Admin Clerk 1 No  0 1 

3 SNR Financial Controller 1 Yes  1 0 

4 Technician Civil 1 Yes  1 0 

5 Technician : Electro 1 Yes  1 0 
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Mechanical 

6 Technician :Water 

Quality 

1 Yes  1 0 

7 Technician: Civil Eng 

Projects 

1 Yes  1 0 

8 Customer Care 

Practitioner 

1 Yes  1 0 

9 PMU Manager 1 Yes  0 1 

10 Technician : Slid waste 1 no 0 1 

11 Technician : Electricity 1 No  0 1 

12 Roads Superintendent 1 No  0 1 

13 Town Planner 1 No  0 1 

14 Building Inspector 1 Yes  1 0 

15 Land and Estates Officer 1 Yes  1 0 

16 Driver/ plant operator 4 Yes  4 0 

17 Handyman Electrical 1 Yes  0 1 

18 General Workers 44 Yes  44  

 Total  64    

 

 

 

 

 

2. Technical staff registered with professional bodies 

 

Technical Service Total number of Total number Total number pending Total number 
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(e.g water, 

electricity etc...) 

technical service 

Managers 

registered in the 

accredited 

professional body 

registration 

confirmation in the 

accredited 

professional body 

not yet 

registered in 

the accredited 

professional 

body 

 1 0 4 4 

     

 

3. Levels of education and skills 

 

Total number of staff Number of staff 

without Grade 12 

Number of staff with 

Senior Certificate only 

Number of staff with 

Tertiary/accredited 

professionals training 

112 66 28 18 

 

 

4. Trends on total personnel expenditure 

 

Financial 

Years 

Total number 

of staff 

Total approved 

operating 

Budget 

Personnel 

expenditure (salary 

and salary related) 

Percentage of expenditure 

2009 -2010 63 18 390 713 10 099 063 37.37% 

2010 -2011  16 186 361 14 234 771 27% 

2011 -2012 112 16 108 069 17 434 396 29,87% 

 

 

5. List of pension and medical aids to whom employees belong (please add if necessary) 

 

Names of pension fund Number of 

members 

 Names of medical Aids Number of 

members 

South African Local 

Authorities Pension Fund 

61  Bonitas 1 
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Cape Joint Retirement 

Fund 

47  SAMWUMED 20 

   LA Health 9 

 

 

1.4  Senior officials’ wages and benefits (even if included in the financial statements); 

 

REMUNERATION FOR THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW: 2012 2011

R R

Remuneration of the Municipal Manager - S Dayi

Annual Remuneration 518 510       463 415       

Car and other allowances 173 803       173 803       

Performance Bonuses 93 367          76 166          

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 120 897       114 994       

Total 906 578       828 378       

Remuneration of the Manager Technical Services - MJ MjambaVacant since September

Annual Remuneration 107 460       429 840       

Car and other allowances 12 000          57 600          

Performance Bonuses -                -                

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 19 024          76 097          

Total 138 484       563 536       

The position was vacant with Manager Corporate Service responsible for Technical 

department for the whole financial year.  The previous manager was suspended and 

his contract expired 30 September 2012. The position was filled subsequent to year 

end.

2012 2011

R R

Remuneration of the Manager Corporate Service - M Siqaza

Annual Remuneration 504 162       474 181       

Car and other allowances 57 600          57 600          

Performance Bonuses 64 237          33 236          

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 85 283          78 728          

Total 711 283       643 745       

Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer - Gerald de Jager - Vacant since May

Annual Remuneration 470 641       488 938       

Car and other allowances 43 000          51 600          

Performance Bonuses 65 259          55 393          

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 62 849          69 972          

Total 641 748       665 903       
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1.5 Implementation of the Performance Management System (PMS):  

Currently Performance Management is only applied to senior management and there has been 

problems cascading PMS to other staff levels.  There has been engagement between management 

and unions around this matter and a memorandum of understanding was entered into but challenge 

has been on the implementation part of it. 

 

 

1.6 Annual performance as per key performance indicators in municipal transformation 

and organizational development 

 

 Indicator name Total number 

of people 

(planned for) 

during the year 

under review 

Achievement 

level during 

the year 

under review 

Achievement 

percentage 

during the year 

Comments on 

the gap 

1 Vacancy rate for all approved and 

budgeted posts; 

    

2 Percentage of appointment in strategic 

positions (Municipal Manager and  

Section 57 Managers) 

5 4  TSM was on 

suspension 

pending a 

disciplinary 

enquiry and the 

position couldn’t 

be filled until 

clarity as to the 

outcome of the 

enquiry 

3 Percentage of  Section 57 Managers 

including  Municipal Managers who 

attended at least 1  skill development 

training course within the FY 

5 5 100  

4 Percentage of Managers in Technical 

Services with a professional qualification 

1 1 100  

5 Percentage of municipalities within the 

district area that have a fully functional 

Performance Management System (DM 

only) 

n/a    

8 Percentage of staff that have undergone 

a skills audit (including competency 

profiles) within the current 5 year  term 

121 121 100  
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9 Percentage of  councillors who attended 

a skill development training within the 

current 5 year term 

5 1 0.4  

10 Percentage of staff complement with 

disability                                         

 0 0 PWD`s do not 

declare their 

status when 

they apply for 

positions and 

therefore not 

easy to 

recognise during 

shortlisting 

11 Percentage of female employees   50 28 31.4 Municipality 

through its 

recruitment 

policy and EE 

Plan gives 

preference to 

females so as to 

achieve parity in 

gender figures.  

12 Percentage of employees that are         

aged 35 or younger 

50 34 37.4  

 

1.7. Major challenges and remedial actions in regard to human resource and organizational 

management 

1.7.1. GEOGRAPHICAL SITUATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY 

The municipality is situated in a very rural area and has commercial farming as its main 

economy. The majority of the municipality`s population is made up of rural areas and the 

two towns are also very small. The result of this is that people with scarce technical skills are 

very reluctant to come to the municipality. Those that come will only use the municipality as 

a stepping stone. The solution to this is that the municipality developed a Human resources 

plan, with which it hopes to devise a strategy to attract and retain skilled people. 

Furthermore, a long term solution is to engage in learnerships and internships. 

 

1.7.2. LACK OF PROGRAMMES FOR EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE 

The municipality has over a long period experienced problems with staff who either suffer 

from severe substance abuse problems and other chronic illnesses. As a solution to this the 
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municipality developed a concept document that spells out programmes it needs to engage 

in so as to eliminate these problems. The programme involves counselling and professional 

advice for social problems. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chapter 2: Basic Service delivery performance highlights (KPA 2) 

2.1 Water services  

a. Water services delivery strategy and main role-players:  

 

Tsolwana Local Municipality is a Water Services Provider on behalf of the Water Services 

Authority, Chris Hani District Municipality. This was informed by the Section 78 assessment that 

was on the 1
st

 of July 2008. Based on the above study, a service level agreement was signed 

between the two institutions so as to formalise the working relationship in this regard. As Water 

Service Provider, the municipality has a responsibility of making sure that the communities have 

access to portable water. 

 

b. Levels and standards in water services:  

 

Yard connections are regarded as the high level of service and the provision of communal 

standpipes being the low or basic level of service. In the urban areas, all the provision is a high 

level of service that is provided and in some parts of the rural areas a basic level of service is 

provided. As required by the service level agreement, the WSP must take water samples every 

month for water quality test to any recognise laboratory. The results have proved positive on 

many instances exempt where there was a little contamination. In this case there was a need for 

an increase of dosing substances so as to be able to be in an acceptance standard with regard to 

water service quality. Customer Care Practitioner is updating the number of households for 

services yearly.  
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c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in water services 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated  

backlogs (actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the FY under 

review (actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households with access 

to potable water 

14024 102 102 86 84% 

2 Percentage of indigent 

households with access 

to free basic potable 

water 

>1965 _ _ _ _ 

4 Percentage of clinics 

with access to potable 

water  

11 0 11 11 100% 

5 Percentage of schools 

with access to potable 

water 

35 6 29 29 82%  

6 Percentage of 

households using 

buckets 

409 409 0 0 0% 

 

 

d. Major challenges in water services and remedial actions 

At Matyhantya Township there were identified leaks at almost 80% of the area. The reasons were 

identified as the negligence of the contractors that were assigned to construct houses there. Some 

of them left the pipes covered under the soil without connecting to the pipe lines. Inconsistency in 

water supply on this area caused delay in identification of this challenge. 

The resolution taken in an attempt to come up with remedial action was requesting the staff from 

EPWP to assist at customer care section with the exercise carried out for actual identification of the 

nature of leak and the repairs required per house hold. Door to door visits were done and proper 

registration. 

The challenges and the nature of equipment were then referred to the civil technician. The 

repair/plumbing material was ordered and the ten casual plumbers were employed to assist and also 

to install the meters so that there can be control through closing on the meter when there is water 

wastage. 
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Also the challenge in this area is a frequent burst of pipes caused by torn poly cop pipe; this also 

causes the frequent water wastage especially during winter whereby in case of frost the bursts are in 

massive numbers leading to overload of plumbers, especially with only two people responsible for 

this area. Also experienced are the challenges that were identified during the installation of 

electricity were by the pipes were frequently broken and the repair costs were not paid by the 

contractor.  

Installation of geysers also caused severe leaks and water spilling is not attended since the 

contractor is not around, the leaks are not attended but lists were submitted after the houses were 

counted.  

At Zola Township there are also complaints of high water bills due to the extensive leaks. On 2011 

the door to door visits were done. 

The initiative taken was to repair the challenges even those that are inside the house/yard .In town 

there are pumps that do pump straight to the line without being treated, the challenge is the budget 

that hinders with installation of online dosing equipment. Metering was then challenging with closed 

and non-readable meters. The team was isolated specially to change and repair all the faulty meters. 

At Hofmeyer there are also large numbers of household that are without water due to the pipe 

laying that was half –done by the contactors. This resulted in valve closing depriving some 

beneficiaries. Currently the challenge has not been resolved. Also there is still extensive water 

shortage that results in alternating supply whereby water should be closed to accommodate one 

township at a time. The most frequent challenge is during summer season whereby all the areas 

need water cart supplement due to lightning that strike the electric pumps. This challenge is more at 

Ntabethemba whereby 11 villages fully depend to water carting. 

The vast shortage of plumbers that are qualified is a major challenge that result in return jobs 

delaying the progress as well. 

 

2.2 Electricity services  

a. Electricity services delivery strategy and main role-players 

 

Tsolwana Municipality is the registered licence holder for supplying of electricity within the 

Tarkastad and part of Hofmeyer towns. This service is being outsourced to a local electrical 

contractor for day to day maintenance as required from time to time. The Department of Energy 

has approved an amount of R2m for the connection of 200 households in Matyhantya Township 

Tarkastad. Capital expenditure at the end of June 2012 was R1 865 997.00. The municipality has 

also managed to install street lighting for Matyhantya Township funded under MIG. 
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The supply of electricity in the rural areas is done directly by ESKOM. 

 

 

b. Level and standards in electricity services 

 

Tsolwana municipality is making every effort in order to confirm with the standards as required 

by ESKOM and eventually the South African Bureau of Standards 

 

c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in Electricity services 

 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs (actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the f. year 

under review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households with access 

to electricity services 

14024 400 200 166 83% 

2 Percentage of indigent 

households with access 

to basic electricity  

services 

>1965 726 376 1239 63.0% 

4 Percentage of  indigent 

households with access 

to free alternative 

energy sources  

0 0 0 0 0% 

 

d. Major challenges in electricity services and remedial actions 

 

The electrical services are being outsourced to a local subcontractor for the basic day to day 

maintenance. The challenge for the municipality is the ability to attract skilled and competent 

staff to the rural areas like Tsolwana Municipality. Furthermore allocation of R2m from 

Department of Energy was not completed due to houses that are being vandalised in 

Matyhantya Township; this resulted to rollover of R138 692.00. Application for rollover to 

2012/2013 financial year will be forwarded to National Treasury. 

2.3 Sanitation 

a. Sanitation services delivery strategy and main role-players 



33 

 

 

 

 

 

Tsolwana Local Municipality is a Water Services Provider on behalf of the Water Services 

Authority, Chris Hani District. This was informed by the Section 78 assessment that was on the 

1
st

 of July 2008. Based on the above study, a service level agreement was signed between the 

two institutions so as to formalise the working relationship in this regard. Chris Hani DM has 

approved and implemented VIP toilets in the Ntabethemba areas. Chris Hani DM has not been 

able to meet the National target of December 2008 for the eradication of buckets. This was due 

to non-performance by the contractors appointed. This is only applicable to the Tarkastad 

bucket eradication project. Chris Hani DM is in process of implementing the project again.  

 

b. Level and standards in sanitation services 

 

The municipality is trying all its best to adhere to the required minimum standards regarding the 

sanitation services in the area. Customer Care Practitioner is updating the number of households 

for services yearly.  

c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in sanitation services 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs (actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the f. year 

under review 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households with access 

to sanitation services 

14024 2399 618 440 71% 

2 Percentage of indigent 

households with access 

to free basic sanitation 

services 

>1965 776 776 1189 60.5% 

4 Percentage of clinics 

with access to sanitation 

services 

11 0 11 11 100% 

5 Percentage of schools 

with access to sanitation 

services 

35 7 0 0 0% 

 

d. Major challenges in sanitation services and remedial actions 

Dawn- Park had 68 households without any sanitation and relying on the bush when the nature calls. 

Department of Human Settlement appointed local emerging contractors for erf connections and 

house connections. The Department of Human Settlement is designing the installation of sewer 

main. 
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 There are also households at Extension 2 that are without sanitation and not even a structure. The 

sanitation backlog is still a challenge whereby the buckets are still highly used. The sanitation tractor 

is faulty with many cases whereby it gets parked, while loaded within the residing areas. The sewer 

pump station at Zola has been overflowing several times causing health hazards to the residents of 

this areas. Efforts were done to empty it using honey sucker. Chris Hani DM is in process of 

implementing the project again.  

At Hofmeyer the bucket tractor is reported un- road worthy with challenged breaks. The septic tank 

sucker had been though repairs for many times whereby the truck was shared by all the area of 

Tsolwana causing delays in complaint follow up time –frames that should be followed. The sewer 

line of Tarkastad town seems to need attention judging from the frequency of blocked drains in a 

particular area especially close to the town clinic. 

The equipment that is utilised to resolve these challenges is manual and rather delaying in case of 

instances whereby there is frequency in blockages.  

 

2. 4 Road maintenance  

a. Road maintenance services delivery strategy and main role-players 

 

The total length of internal road in the municipality is 234km. The conditions of roads within the 

municipality especially in the Ntabethemba are in a state of disrepair. The stormwater channels 

are non-existent throughout the municipal area thus the roads eroded, especially during heavy 

rains. 

It is worth mentioning that the Tsolwana Municipality and Department of Roads and Public 

Works EC signed memorandum of understanding (MOU) for upgrading of Tsolwana Roads. The 

scope of works will include road to Tsolwana Game Reserve, Tarkastad internal street, 

Eluxolweni internal street and Zola Township internal roads. Professional Service Provider is 

appointed for all the designs. 

b. Level and standards in road maintenance services 

 

The municipality does not have plant to maintain the roads. However, every effort is made with 

the limited resources that the municipality has. Department of Roads and Public Works is playing 

a significant role by supporting the initiatives of the municipality in the roads maintenance. In 

addition Department of Human Settlement is construction in internal roads for the new RDP 

houses. 
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c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in road maintenance services 

 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs (actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the f. year 

under review 

(Actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households without  

access to gravel or 

graded roads 

234km 211km 8km 8km 100% 

2 Percentage of road 

infrastructure requiring 

upgrade  

71.3km 221km 23.3km 0km 0% 

4 Percentage of planned 

new road infrastructure 

actually constructed 

0km 234km 0km 0km 0% 

5 Percentage of capital 

budget reserved for road 

upgrading and maintenance 

effectively used. 

25km 213km 21km 21km 84% 

 

d. Major challenges in road maintenance services and remedial actions 

 

Although there is an MOU between Tsolwana Municipality and Department of Roads and Public 

Works to upgrade Tsolwana internal road but the challenge is funding. Another challenge is the 

shortage of machinery to maintain the internal road. 

2.5 Waste management  

a. Waste management services delivery strategy and main role-players 

 

The municipality has the constitutional mandate to service its constituency in terms of service 

delivery of which waste management is one of the core functions of this purpose. Also the 

municipality has a mandate of keeping its environment clean so as to better the living conditions 

of its communities. It is the duty of each local authority or municipality to ensure that its 

constituency is living in a better conditions and its people are not subjected to deceases that 

may emanate from the filthy conditions. 
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The municipality has very vibrant staff that is committed to render this service in both urban 

areas (Tarkastad and Hofmeyr). We, as the municipality have a landfill site where we dispose the 

waste in both urban areas. The challenge that we having with these sites are that they are not 

registered and we are in the process of registration in order to get permits .  We also have been 

in contact with the Department of environmental affairs for the same matter but also in vain. 

Our landfill sites are  fenced and we collect twice a week, in terms of tonnage that the 

municipality collects annually, we usually collect 140 tons per annum in both urban areas. 

 

b. Level and standards in waste management services 

 

The dumping sites that we are having at Hofmeyr and Tarkastad are not in compliance with 

National legislations that govern waste management. They are both not registered with the 

Department of Environmental Affairs. The standard of our land field sites is very low as they are 

fenced.  The Solid waste generated at Tarkastad and Hofmeyr is disposed off at local landfill 

sited situated in close proximity to the two towns. Among the problems associated with these 

landfills include possible water contamination, air pollution, unsightliness caused by wind blown 

litter, inaccessibility to the dumps, uncontrolled tipping, improper disposal of, especially, 

medical waste etc. In the rural areas there is no formal refuse disposal system and thus make 

use of other illegal dumping systems whish impact on the adjoining environment. 

 

In terms of the backlog, it has been estimated that approximately 86% (5754) of the households 

are without municipal refuse removal services. R900 000 is needed to eradicate the backlog. 

Both sites are underdeveloped and the LM need to assisted financial under to deal with current 

backlogs. 

 

c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in waste management services? 

 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs (actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the f. year 

under review 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households with  access 

to refuse removal 

services 

100% 40% 20% 4461 10% 

 

 

 

d. Major challenges in waste management services and remedial actions 
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The main challenges with that the municipality is facing is that our landfill sites are not 

completely in compliance with the NEMA. The municipality does have a waste management plan 

but it need to be reviewed. It is a shared responsibility between the local municipality as well as 

the District municipality. As said above, the municipality has been in contact with the DM for the 

betterment of this situation. Funding remains the biggest challenge that the LM is faced with. 

 

Remedial actions: 

- Registration of landfill sites with the Department of Environmental Affairs. 

- CHDM must be roped in to assist in this regard 

- CHMD to avail an amount of R900 000 to eradicate the backlog 

2.6 Housing and town planning  

a. Housing and town planning services delivery strategy and main role-players 

 

Tsolwana Municipality identified the land and seek beneficiaries so to apply for houses. In the 

old housing projects i.e. Tarkastad 671, Tarkastad 1000, Hofmeyr 1000 and Thornhill 1400 the 

municipality is the Developer and Financial Accounting. The municipality appointed the BSZ as 

Principal Agent to assure quality assurance of the constructed houses. The Human Settlement 

Department is doing inspection to all the houses. The Housing Steering Committees have also 

been established so to represent and made the beneficiaries involved in the housing delivery. 

We have engaged Emerging Contractors to build the houses for our people. The department of 

human settlement approved and constructed 3536 rural housing projects. 

 

In the new housing projects at Ntabethemba Wards 2&3 namely: 

• Becclesfarm & Rocklands                    688 

• Kwezi                                                    512 

• Springroove/Thembalethu                  635 

• Mitford                                                     700 

• Khayalethu & Tentergate                     1101 

The Human Settlement Department is the Developer and Financial Accounting. The Tsolwana 

Municipality has assisted in the application of projects, provision of Layout plans, identification 

of beneficiaries and signing application forms of beneficiaries and in the establishment of 

projects steering committees and attending meetings to solve problems. The Khula Consulting 

has been engaged for Sales Administration of beneficiaries and sites allocation. The Lukhozi 
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Consultants has been engaged for quality assurance. Three major contractors are engaged to 

construct houses: 

• S C Contractor 

• Montero Construction 

b. Level and standards in Housing and town planning services 

 

The access to housing delivery at our municipality is very high. Yes our population is growing and 

houses are a demand as we do have list of beneficiaries that still need some houses who were 

left behind in the existing housing projects. 

Presently we are constructing high quality of houses as we have engaged the principal agencies 

for quality assurance. 

 

c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in housing and town planning services 

 

 Indicator name Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs (Actual 

numbers) 

Target set for 

the f. year 

under review 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 Percentage of 

households living in 

informal settlements 

5% 337 337 337 N/A 

2 Percentage of informal 

settlements that have 

been provided with basic 

services 

5% n/a N/A 5%  

3 Percentage of 

households in formal 

housing that conforms to 

the minimum building 

standards for residential 

houses 

71% 9000 4331 4669  

 

d. Major challenges in housing and town planning services and remedial actions 

1. Capacity building of personnel 

Remedial action: Department of Human Settlement to second personnel to the LM 

2. Training of the existing officials 

Remedial action: Department of Human Settlement to avail funds to train existing officials 

3. No professional Town Planner at the LM 
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Remedial action: LM to appoint Town Planner on a consultative bases 

4. Non occupation of completed RDP Houses by beneficiaries 

Remedial action: LM & DHS to consider the beneficiaries in the waiting list to occupy houses 

5. Lack of Infrastructure at Barcelona inhibits approval of housing project 

Remedial action: Department of Human Settlement to speed up our application for funds 

6. Lack of new commonage at Tarkastad for any new housing project there is no more 

land. 

Remedial action: Department of Land Affairs to buy Lusthof Farm 

 

2.7 Spatial planning  

a. Preparation and approval process of SDF: 

The development proposals form the bases for a Capital Investment Framework, wherein the focus 

will be laid on for: 

 

- Priority areas for strategic development & investment (e.g. to provide opportunities & 

strategies directed for private investment) 

- Priority areas for services upgrading (e.g. to address services backlogs) 

The CIF provides general guidance for both budgeting & implementation process whereas 

the following detailed Implementation Plan comprises of a prioritized list of all proposed 

developmental interventions (e.g. programmes & projects to implement the formulated 

strategies). 

The proposed areas for new development will be specifically described in the 

Implementation Plan, including their location, size, land availability, ownership, budget 

estimates etc. in order to provide the Local Municipality and other role-players with the 

necessary information to put the intended development into effect. 

Phasing in terms of different financial years and the responsibility for planning and 

implementation of the projects will be given throughout the Implementation Plan. The 

Capital Investment Framework and the Implementation Plan will be incorporated in the IDP 

of the Local Municipality during the next IDP review process. 

b. Land use management: 

The Council has approved sub-divisions submitted to it namely: 

• Farm 1102 Tarkastad 

• Farm 240 Delton, Tarkastad 

• Farm Rode Kuilslegte No. 4 
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• Portion 1 of Farm Bloemplaats No. 41 Maraisburg 

Consent use, 

N/A The municipality is doing all in its power in making sure that the land is used according to its 

purposes. 

Removal of restrictive conditions 

N/A 

Township establishments 

Bowes, McDougal were engaged in the Township establishment at Ward 1 i.e. Thornhill, Zola and 

Phakamisa. 

Major challenges in spatial planning services and remedial actions 

Funding to review SDF 

- remedial actions   - Departments of Land Affairs  availed an amount of R300.000 in order for us to 

be able to review the SDF 

Recourses are so scarce in the implementation of priority projects 

- remedial actions – mobilisation of resources with the sector departments and the private sector is 

key in the implementation of priority projects. 

Lack of capacity within the institution 

- remedial actions – we propose that a training be organised for a departmental official or an official 

be seconded as the voice of the plan implementation. 

 

Refuse removal       

Backlogs to be eliminated (n0. HH not 

receiving the minimum standard 

service) 

5754 5754 17262 5754 5754 17262 

Backlogs to be eliminated (%: total HH 

identified as backlog/total numb of HH 

in the municipality 

75% 75% 100% 75% 75% 100% 

Spending on new infrastructure to 

eliminate backlogs (R000) 

R144 

9323 

R144 

9323 

R189 

6889 

R144 9323 R144 9323 R189 6889 
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Spending on renewal of existing 

infrastructure to eliminate backlog 

(R000) 

R144 

9323 

R144 

9323 

R189 

6889 

R144 9323 R144 9323 R189 6889 

Total spending to eliminate backlogs 

(R000) 

R144 

9323 

R144 

9323 

R189 

6889 

R144 9323 R144 9323 R189 6889 

Spending on maintenance to ensure 

no new backlogs (R000) 

R240 

5582 

R240 

5582 

R240 

5582 

R240 5582 R240 5582 R240 5582 

Housing and town planning       

Backlogs to be eliminated (n0. HH not 

receiving the minimum standard 

service) 

1700 1700 7943 1700 1700 7943 

Backlogs to be eliminated (%: total HH 

identified as backlog/total numb of HH 

in the municipality 

5.74% 5.74% 100% 5.74% 5.74% 100% 

Spending on new infrastructure to 

eliminate backlogs (R000) 

R17 225 

129 

R62m R17 

225 

129 

R17 225 

129 

R62m R17 225 129 

Spending on renewal of existing 

infrastructure to eliminate backlog 

(R000) 

R17 225 

129 

R62m R17 

225 

129 

R17 225 

129 

R62m R17 225 129 

R17 225 129 

Total spending to eliminate backlogs 

(R000) 

R918 

00000 

R918 

00000 

N/A R918 

00000 

R918 00000 N/A 

Spending on maintenance to ensure 

no new backlogs (R000) 

R918 

00000 

R918 

00000 

N/A R918 

00000 

R918 00000 N/A 

 

CHAPTER 3: MUNICIPAL LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK- 

(KPA 3) 

 

3.1 Brief presentation of LED strategy/plan  

• Status on developing the LED strategy/plan 

The municipality has developed and adopted LED strategy in 2011/12 financial year. 

• Setting up a LED unit; 
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The LED office unit has been established three officials are employed full time one has been seconded by the 

department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs. 

• The availability of a LED expertise; 

Challenges are as follows:-Funding 

-Led infrastructure –Reliance on external funders – Capacity development. 

• LED stakeholder forum functionality (number of meetings held); 

0ur LED office has conducted several meetings around LED and there are so many activities that 

are LED related taking place in our communities.The office will be establishing LED forum very 

soon. 

• Funding opportunities of LED activities (indicative figures on Donors/funders and types of 

program). 

  

• LED Strategy development -   

Revitalisation 

of irrigation 

schemes 

Poverty 

Alleviation 

R50 000 Community 

Services 

Dept of Social Development 

Women 

cooperative 

 R250 

000 

Community 

Services 

Dept of Social Development 

 

 

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION 

ALLOCATION RESPONSIBLE 

PERSON 

FUNDING 

AGENT 

Dipping tank in 

ward 1 

Dipping tank R500 000 Community 

Services 

Dept. of 

Agriculture 

Tarkastad 

commonage farm 

Fencing R40 000 Community 

Services 

Tsolwana local 

municipality 

Food security 

program 

Provioning of 

seeds 

R3000 Community 

Services 

Tsolwana local 

municipality 

Livestock 

improvement 

Purchasing of 

Boer goats 

R248 000 Community 

Services 

CHDM 
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Livestock 

improvements 

Umgcunube 

Food security  

Vaccination of 

livestock 

R250 000 Community 

Services 

CHDM 

 

 

 

3.2 Progress towards achieving the LED key objectives  

a. Improve public and market confidence 

• Spatial development framework (SDF)/Land use management system(LUMS); 

 Tsolwana Municipality has developed both SDF and LUMS and has involved ward 

representatives in their developments. Community participation was prioritised as we 

wanted communities to own these documents (bottom-up approach). A number of 

workshops has were organised so as to get more information as possible from different 

role-players. The municipality was assisted by the department of Land Affairs and Rural 

Development for the reviewing process of the SDF.  

 

• Red tape reduction: Turn-around time for licensing and other business related 

applications; 

N/A 

• Investments and trading by-laws 

Human resource department is responsible for the development of all municipal by-laws 

in our municipality. Therefore trading by-laws were developed and approved by the 

council in consultation with local communities. Road show are being called in all the 

municipal wards so that communities can in put on those by-laws.  

• Provision and maintenance of quality and reliable infrastructure: Roads; ITC; 

market places 

Though infrastructural development and maintenance is part of Local Economic 

Development, our municipality has entirely shifted this responsibility to the local 

department of technical services. The reason being that the municipality lacks the 

human resource to undertake this responsibility. Infrastructure is in place in most of our 

areas though it needs to be upgraded. More funds are needed to develop the bad status 

of our internal roads and streets. 

• Disaster management; 
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Disaster management is not the competence of the Local authorities, the municipality is 

oblige to have some measures and role to play when disasters strike. The municipality is 

suppose to have a disaster management plan in place for the mitigation of the impact of 

disasters, however because of the financial challenges, the municipality has not been 

able to fund the development of the plan. The municipality relies on the District plan as 

this is their core function.  

The district municipality has been able to open up sitellite offices in diffèrent 

municipality   within Chris Hani District Municipality. Tsolwana has been one of the 

luckiest to have this   office. There are two field workers and one receptionist in this 

office seconded to us by the  District municipalty. The centre is situated at Tarkastad 

municipal offices. Dstrict  municipality has provide furniture for the sitellite 

office.Achiemets in 2011/12 construction of two 40m square meters in Phakamisa 

village and Tarkastad.  

b. Exploit comparative and competitive advantage for industrial activities 

N/A 

c. Intensify Enterprise support and business development 

• The type of business development services (BDS) provided to SMME; 

The municipality sometimes assists these SMME’s by transport when they have to 

attend workshops and information sharing sessions in and outside the jurisdiction of 

Tsolwana. 

The municipality also assists them in terms of giving information of where they can 

be assisted e.g refer them to institutions such as Chris Hani Coop Development 

Centre, SEDA etc. 

• Public and private partnerships established 

N/A 

• Number of new formal SMME established within the municipality 

 

• Number of new employment opportunities through Expanded Public Works 

Programs and Public and Private Partnerships 

42 employment opportunities have been created through Expanded Public Works 

Program. 

d. Support Social investment program 

Within the municipality there are 22 cooperatives. 

 

3.3 Annual performance as per key performance indicators in LED 
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 Indicator name Target set for the 

year 

Achievement level 

during the year 

(absolute figure) 

Achievement 

percentage during 

the year 

1 Percentage of LED Budget spent on LED 

related activities. 

4 4 100% 

2 Number of LED stakeholder forum held 4 4 100% 

3 Percentage of SMME that have 

benefited from a SMME support 

program 

13 10 90% 

4 Number of job opportunities created 

through EPWP 

92 41 45% 

5 Number of job opportunities created 

through PPP 

0 0 0 

 

 

 

3.4 Challenges regarding LED strategy implementation 

The challenges to the support of the LED within the municipality is the  funding resource for the 

LED.  We believe that the municipality will never have a functional LED without  funding. This is 

why the municipality has taken a conscious decision to set aside a 5% budget for Municipal 

Infrastructure Grant funding annually. The municipality must consider creating an independent 

LED unit that will have its focus on the development of Local Economies and the creation of job 

opportunities. The other challenge that is almost common to all local municipalities is the weak 

LED forums. The municipality needs to go out and make awareness campaigns towards the 

importance of participating in LED forums and the mobilisation of sector departments to 

participate in these forums.   

 

3.3 Annual performance as per key performance indicators in LED 

• Municipality is expected to provide information on these KPIs as they play a vital role  

when assessing these reports. 
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Chapter 4: MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT (KPA 4) 

 

4.1 The audited financial statements 

 

Audited Annual financial statements for the period ending 30 June 2012: 

 

Refer to annexure 2 

 

4.2 Budget to actual comparison 

 

Actual vs budget figures for the period ending 30 June 2012: 

 

Refer to note 39 in the Annual financial statements – Annexure 2 
 

4.3 Grants and transfers’ spending 

 

4.4 Meeting of Donors’ requirements in respect of conditional grants 

 

All expenditure incurred for the period 2011-2012 was in line with the conditions of the grants 

received.  It should however be noted that an amount of R2.6m was paid to National Treasury during 

the financial year for INEG grant monies received in prior years.   

 

4.5 Long term contracts entered into by the municipality 

 

We did not enter into any long term contracts during the year. 

  

4.6 Annual performance as per key performance indicators in financial viability – 
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Indicator name Budget R() Actual R() %

1 Capita l  expenditure    9 870 200 

2
Salary expendi ture for the year 

(excl  Counci l )
 17 434 396  16 108 068 92%

Salary expendi ture for the year 

(incl  counci l
 19 626 041  18 309 660 93%

3
Tota l  operating expenditure 

(incl  operating grants )
 58 355 099  50 356 777 86%

4 Trade Creditors

5
Rate of municipa l  consumer 

debt reducti on

6

Percentage of MIG budget 

appropriately spent(2011/2012 

a l location)

   9 631 000    7 169 911 74%

7
Percentage of MSIG budget 

appropriately spent
      790 000       790 000 100%

 

 

 

4.7 The Audit committee functionality  

For the year under review, one member of the Audit Committee resigned and the said committee 

was left with only (2) members. Three meetings were held during the year. As the Audit Committee 

also serves as Performance Audit Committee, the Chairperson formed part of the performance 

review panel. He also chaired the Mid-Year performance assessment during March 2012    

 

4.8 Arrears in property rates and service charges 

 

Please refer to note 16 in the annual financial statements. 

 

4.9 Anti-corruption strategy 

The Anti-corruption strategy was developed and adopted by the council during the 2009/10 financial 

year. Implementation is a challenge as the municipality did not have an in-house internal audit unit 

which should play a key role in identifying corrupt and fraudulent practices.  

As part of improving this situation the council has prioritised the establishment of an internal audit 

unit headed by a qualified Internal Audit Executive.   

The municipality did investigate one (1) incident of fraudulent activity regarding monies that were 

stolen.  The relevant official was suspended and subsequent to year end dismissed. 
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Chapter 5: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION- (KPA 5) 

 

5.1 Overview of the Executive and Council functions and achievements; 

Tsolwana municipality is a plenary executive type of a municipality, composed of ten councillors. 

Five of the councillors are ward councillors and the other five being councillors elected on 

proportional representation. This type of a council structure implies that council resolutions are 

taken as a collective. The main challenge about this is that it does not allow for a structure that can 

be able to take emergency resolutions on behalf of the council, as would be the case where there is 

an executive council or mayoral committee. The MEC for local government was approached to 

rectify this and we are still awaiting their response. In terms of s 79 of the Municipal Structures Act 

permits municipalities to establish committees to assist it to perform its functions efficiently and to 

exercise its powers. Armed with this section the municipality established the following committees: 

� Two standing committees; namely Human Resources & Finance standing committee and the 

Infrastructure and social services standing committee 

� The audit committee 

Both the standing committees are functional and sit regularly to advise council on a number of 

issues.  

The audit committee also sits quarterly and reviews, functionality of the municipality. 

 

5.2 Public participation and consultation; 

The main mechanism that the municipality uses for the community to participate in its decision 

making is the usage of the following forums: 

IDP REPS FORUM; this forum receives issues from the community and submit them in the planning 

meeting of the IDP reps. These reps are actively involved in all the processes of the IDP and budget. 

This work starts with ward planning meetings, that are held in each ward before the IDP review 

process is commenced for a particular financial year. 
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The other mechanism is the usage of ward committees; here the ward committee members hold 

monthly and other meetings together with ward councillors. In these meetings ward committees 

raise issues to be relayed to the council by the ward councillor and also receive feedback from the 

ward councillor on those issues submitted for consideration by council. The ward committees in 

return report back to their constituencies. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Once the IDP and budget processes are completed the municipality engage in consultation 

processes. The consultation meetings are held in each ward where communities are afforded an 

opportunity to raise issues. 

 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEYS 

A customer satisfaction survey programme was initiated with the assistance of the Department of 

Local Government and currently the responses are still with them for their analysis.   

 

5.3 Ward committees’ establishment and functionality 

The municipality is made up of five wards and ward committees were established for each ward. As 

the law provides each committee is made up of ten members representing a variety of interests 

within the community. All the ward committees are functional and meet as per their schedules. 

However there are challenges in ward 5.  

MEMBERS ATTENDANCE TO MEETINGS; 

The attendance by ward committee members in most of the wards is satisfactory. In the event 

where a member fails to attend meetings without good cause for three consecutive meetings such 

person`s membership automatically terminates as provided for in their code of conduct. 

As proof of attendance of meetings ward committees are required to submit copies attendance 

registers of their meetings together with minutes of their meetings. 

AVAILABILITY OF MINUTES OF WARD MEETINGS;  

Ward committees hold monthly meetings and the proceedings of such minutes are recorded in the 

form of minutes and submitted to the municipality for record keeping and as proof of their 
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functionality. Ward committees main issues of discussion range from the projects that are being 

implemented in their wards and other issues that are related to service delivery either by the 

municipality and or government departments. 

WRITTEN PROOF OF TABLING RESOLUTIONS TO COUNCILS; 

Issues discussed in ward committee meetings that need council attention and resolution are 

submitted to council by ward councillors and incorporated in the agenda items of the relevant 

department as part of the council agenda.  

 

 

 

AVAILABILITY OF MINUTES OF FEEDBACK MEETINGS WITH COMMUNITIES 

Minutes of ward committee meetings with communities are combined with minutes of the monthly 

meeting of the committee and submitted to the municipality. This also serves as one way by which 

the functionality of a ward committee is measured.  

AVAILABILITY OF WARD COMMITTEE ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Ward committees provide minutes of their meetings to the ward councillors and if there is anything 

they need to report on, it is incorporated in their minutes. The minutes in a nutshell double up as 

the activity reports. A ward performance template was designed to assess the performance of ward 

committees.  

 

5.4 Community Development workers performance monitoring 

In this regard a challenge existed for some time until it was solved, where CDW`s felt they were not 

supposed to give reports to the municipality but only to the department of local government. 

However this was clarified and now things are beginning to go smoothly.  CDW`s now submit and do 

oral presentation during monthly roundtable meetings with the municipality. CDW`s form part of the 

municipal forums ranging from IDP Reps, Social services, Transport and Local and District 

Communicators Forum. 

 

5.5 Communication strategy 
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ADOPTION OF THE STRATEGY BY THE COUNCIL; 

The municipality developed a communication strategy by which it communicates with its 

communities. The strategy defines issues to be communicated to the community and the manner in 

which they are communicated.  

HUMAN RESOURCE AVAILABLE TO LEAD THE COMMUNICATION ACTIVITIES; 

Currently the municipality does not have a communication unit and the Corporate Services Manager 

doubles up as the Communication Officer. This is mainly due to financial constraints. 

INFRASTRUCTURAL RESOURCE AVAILABLE FOR COMMUNICATION ACTIVITIES 

Since the municipality was faced with budgetary constraints in the year under review, there was not 

much set aside for infrastructural resource for communication. The municipality is now in the 

process of developing quarterly newsletters. It is hoped that this will help the municipality to reach 

out to its customers and to inform them of its programmes on a quarterly basis. 

 

  

5.7 Intergovernmental Relations 

The Municipality is expected to report on the development, adoption and implementation of the IGR 

framework during the year under review.  

The municipality should clearly indicate the number of IGR meetings organized or attended to; 

In case the municipality has signed partnership agreements with other government departments or 

private organizations, and municipalities in foreign countries, the municipality should provide 

information on the number of such partnerships and their effectiveness in meeting the purpose. 

5.8 Legal matters 

 

5.8.1 Setting up of Legal Units  

 

The municipality does not have a legal unit and all its legal matters are dealt with by external 

legal firms. Legal firms are utilised according to their fields of specialisation. Legal firms that 

have so far been used are Bowes & Mcdougall and Kirchmann`s Incorporated 

 

5.8.2 Management of litigation 

 

1. Case Load Management with specific reference to:  

 

a. Favourable cases 
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Case name Recovery (yes/No) Reasons for non 

recovery 

   

   

 

 

b. Unfavourable cases 

 

Case name Compliance with 

judgement (yes/No) 

Reasons for non 

compliance with 

judgement 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Case age analysis,  

 

Case name Nature 

of the 

case 

Date of 

commenceme

nt 

Cases of 2 years 

or bellow 

Cases 

beyond 

2 years 

Reasons for 

extensive 

duration 

      

 

 

 

 

1. Default judgements 

 

Case name Reasons for default judgement 

  

  

 

1. Prevention mechanisms of current litigations: 

The municipality is expected to clearly indicate steps taken by the legal services 

to prevent the current litigations and the reasons why these ligations could not 

be prevented. 

 

2. Criminal matters emanating from corruption and fraud 

The municipality is expected to provide the list of cases of criminal matters 

emanating from corruption and fraud.   
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            5.8.3 Management of Legal Risks 

 

The municipality is expected to provide information on any existing policy adopted by 

the Council to manage legal risks during the year under review. In case of non existence 

of a policy, the municipality should say what steps are being taken to ensure that the 

policy for management of legal risk is in place and adopted.  
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PART 3- FUNCTIONAL AREAS 

REPORTING AND ANNEXURE 
A: FUNCTIONAL AREA SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING 

 

1.  General information (population statistics) 

 Tsolwana Municipality     

  GENERAL INFORMATION     

     

Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Provide a general overview of municipality: this may include a short 
narrative of issues peculiar to the municipality and issues specific to 
the financial year being reported 

    

Information: <Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

        

  Geography:     

1 Geographical area in square kilometres 6000   

  Note: Indicate source of information  Global 
insight: 
2008 

  

  Demography:     

2 Total population 30952   

  Note: Indicate source of information  Global 
insight: 
2008 

  

3 Indigent Population 40%   

  Note: Indicate source of information and define basis of indigent policy 
including definition of indigent 

 Global 
insight 

  

4 Total number of voters 16784   

5 Aged breakdown:     

   - 65 years and over 11%   

   - between 40 and 64 years    

   - between 15 and 39 years 4400   

   - 14 years and under 4500   

  Note: Indicate source of information     

6 Household income:     

   - over R3,499 per month 2%   

   - between R2,500 and R3,499 per month 14%   

   - between R1,100 and R2,499 per month 16%   

   - under R1,100 per month 23%   
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  Note: Indicate source of information  Global 
insight: 
2008 

  

        

 

 



 

 

 

1.  Finance and Administration function’s performance 

Function: Finance and Administration     

Sub Function: Finance     

    

A. Overview: 

The Financial Services Directorate is responsible for ensuring sound financial management, monitoring the budget expenditure 

and revenue management, timely reporting to Council, timely completion of annual financial statements for submission to the 

Auditor-General, perform bank reconciliation, payment of creditors and the general financial management of the municipality, 

asset management of the municipality and supply chain management. 

B. Description of the Activity 

The Financial Services Directorate has the following divisions led by Divisional Heads (Accountants) who report directly to the 

Chief Financial Officer: 

• Revenue Management (which includes Debt collection; Credit Control and Indigent; Rates and Valuation) 

• Expenditure and Asset Management 

• Supply Chain Management and Information technology 

The Financial Services Directorate serves as a support function to all directorates of the municipality.  Direct interaction with 

the public takes place at the following levels and division: 

• consumer enquiries on municipal account,  

• credit control,  

• indigent assistance application and; 
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• Registration and supply chain management. 

C.  Debtor billing and collection detail for the period under review: 

 

  Jul-11 

 

Aug-11 

  Billed Interest Received 

 

Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy 

                    

-    

  10 

306.65  

          -

233.65  

 

                     

-    

  10 

388.65  

          -

239.65  

Streetlights 

        4 

150.70  

     2 

190.85  

          -

449.20  

 

        4 

192.00  

    2 

222.05  

          -

375.95  

Rates 

   607 

908.25  

     8 

512.05  

     -41 

205.50  

      73 

339.95  

    8 

597.55  

    -69 

406.15  

Electricity 

   342 

023.20  

  16 

356.50  

  -239 

068.71  

   224 

030.30  

  17 

636.85  

  -129 

765.38  

Water 

   101 

898.85  

  14 

279.25  

     -27 

036.65  

      27 

746.50  

  14 

910.25  

    -26 

904.70  

Sanitation 

     57 

091.45  

  22 

040.25  

     -27 

916.85  

 

      61 

025.10  

  22 

437.05  

    -12 

761.95  

Refuse 

     40 

461.25  

  14 

487.60  

     -31 

545.53  

 

      41 

081.60  

  14 

673.80  

    -17 

093.95  

        

          Sep-11 

 

Oct-12 

  Billed Interest Received 

 

Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy                       10           -

 

                       10           -
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-    473.60  259.90  -    557.65  564.65  

Streetlights 

        4 

185.45  

     2 

257.40  

          -

598.85  

        4 

179.95  

    2 

286.65  

          -

757.80  

Rates 

     71 

919.60  

     8 

857.75  

  -112 

504.50  

 

      69 

690.20  

    8 

884.65  

  -119 

937.42  

Electricity 

   299 

477.65  

  17 

589.50  

  -227 

049.22  

 

   294 

875.60  

  18 

018.45  

  -253 

444.47  

Water 

     79 

171.75  

  14 

868.65  

     -36 

447.17  

 

      83 

866.55  

  15 

288.90  

    -31 

542.27  

Sanitation 

     60 

676.60  

  22 

759.55  

     -24 

215.15  

      61 

450.30  

  21 

893.70  

    -29 

065.06  

Refuse 

     40 

992.00  

  14 

853.80  

     -26 

779.80  

      52 

236.60  

  15 

055.00  

    -20 

285.29  

  Nov-11 Dec-12 

  Billed Interest Received Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy 

                    

-    

  10 

645.40  

          -

206.65  

                     

-    

  10 

729.30  

          -

238.45  

Streetlights 

        4 

847.60  

     2 

314.20  

       -1 

074.05  

        4 

165.80  

    2 

348.35  

       -2 

023.45  

Rates 

     70 

934.75  

  16 

946.40  

     -59 

319.45  

 

      62 

281.30  

  17 

242.00  

    -44 

498.11  

Electricity 

   150 

972.65  

  17 

886.40  

  -242 

040.46  

 

   240 

016.80  

  18 

485.40  

    -96 

133.97  
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Water 

     55 

397.60  

  15 

458.55  

     -52 

952.20  

   497 

940.10  

  15 

716.95  

    -30 

494.45  

Sanitation 

     66 

091.00  

  23 

373.25  

     -21 

566.22  

      59 

829.60  

  23 

745.65  

    -21 

862.44  

Refuse 

     42 

557.95  

  15 

196.60  

     -17 

921.72  

 

      40 

857.60  

  15 

459.20  

    -23 

010.69  

        

          Jan-12 

 

Feb-12 

  Billed Interest Received 

 

Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy 

                    

-    

  10 

813.65  

          -

272.01  

 

                     

-    

  10 

903.50  

          -

310.80  

Streetlights 

        4 

178.50  

     2 

376.10  

          -

727.96  

 

        4 

172.35  

    2 

406.10  

          -

486.95  

Rates 

     52 

866.25  

  17 

412.20  

     -41 

941.76  

 

      60 

579.30  

  17 

676.60  

    -56 

048.25  

Electricity 

   570 

814.90  

  18 

611.40  

  -223 

519.28  

   277 

488.65  

  18 

532.50  

  -210 

940.56  

Water 

 -371 

606.90  

  15 

863.80  

     -41 

839.13  

      76 

461.00  

  16 

138.35  

    -28 

865.25  

Sanitation 

     53 

824.35  

  24 

014.50  

     -25 

052.67  

      59 

862.40  

  24 

365.50  

    -25 

464.11  

Refuse 

     39 

258.30  

  15 

624.15  

     -24 

363.52  

 

      40 

633.25  

  15 

836.10  

    -24 

192.36  
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          Mar-12 Apr-12 

  Billed Interest Received 

 

Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy 

                    

-    

  10 

993.65  

          -

338.85  

 

              

20.30  

  11 

089.95  

          -

217.55  

Streetlights 

        4 

159.20  

     2 

436.95  

          -

639.90  

        4 

172.80  

    2 

471.40  

          -

361.65  

Rates 

     61 

311.25  

  17 

980.00  

     -58 

928.88  

      59 

158.30  

  18 

152.35  

    -46 

454.53  

Electricity 

   202 

269.70  

  19 

883.55  

  -214 

532.32  

 

   242 

171.85  

  20 

100.65  

    -77 

053.67  

Water 

     54 

731.70  

  16 

689.00  

     -41 

785.86  

 

      64 

344.60  

  16 

770.60  

    -32 

818.90  

Sanitation 

     59 

872.35  

  24 

761.00  

     -25 

240.93  

 

      59 

932.75  

  25 

097.95  

    -13 

158.78  

Refuse 

     41 

131.15  

  16 

075.10  

     -20 

213.50  

 

      41 

972.35  

  16 

293.20  

    -12 

190.77  

        

  May-12 Jun-12 

  Billed Interest Received 

 

Billed Interest Received 

Rates levy 

             

20.30  

  11 

179.45  

          -

334.95  

 

        3 

729.30  

  11 

261.55  

          -

160.15  

Streetlights 

        4 

165.80  

     2 

499.75  

          -

683.62  

      13 

932.85  

    2 

531.05  

          -

258.35  
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Rates 

     57 

603.90  

  18 

194.80  

     -86 

568.54  

      62 

588.05  

  18 

400.50  

    -63 

874.01  

Electricity 

   220 

840.90  

  20 

139.60  

  -200 

818.62  

      55 

860.35  

  16 

092.05  

  -183 

327.39  

Water 

     61 

471.20  

  17 

058.95  

     -34 

148.20  

 

  -456 

781.75  

  17 

255.55  

    -31 

693.95  

Sanitation 

     59 

538.65  

  25 

412.10  

     -26 

086.36  

 

   114 

555.10  

  25 

696.20  

    -28 

732.00  

Refuse 

     44 

232.80  

  16 

473.05  

     -27 

108.10  

 

      72 

670.20  

  16 

627.10  

    -17 

557.08  

 

 

D. Debtor age analysis as at 30 June 2012: 

 

(Electricity):  Ageing       (Water):  Ageing       

  Current (0 - 30 days)     297 595  Current (0 - 30 days)       75 579    

  31 to 60 days     150 470  31 to 60 days       55 448    

  61 to 90 days     137 957  61 to 90 days       54 676    

  91 and more  2 902 348  91 and more  1 903 857    

    

        

  Total 
 

 3 488 370  
  

Total 
 

 2 089 560    

        

(Refuse):  Ageing (Sewerage):  Ageing   

  Current (0 - 30 days)       59 404  Current (0 - 30 days)       93 144    
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  31 to 60 days       49 315  31 to 60 days       78 291    

  61 to 90 days       46 837  61 to 90 days       75 382    

  91 and more  2 682 929  91 and more  4 177 163    

    

        

  Total  2 838 485  
 

Total  4 423 980    

        

(Rates):  Ageing   

  Current (0 - 30 days)       29 965    

  31 to 60 days       78 867    

  61 to 90 days     118 129    

  91 and more  3 428 997    
  

        
  

  Total  3 655 957    
      

                    
 

 

E. Payment percentage for the year under review: 
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Total billed Total interest Total cash received Payment % including interest Payment % excluding interest

Rates levy 3 769.90         129 343.00      -3 377.26                      2.54% 89.58%

Streetlights 60 503.00       28 340.85         -8 437.73                      9.50% 13.95%

Rates 1 310 181.10 176 856.85      -800 687.10                 53.84% 61.11%

Electricity 3 120 842.55 219 332.85      -2 297 694.05              68.79% 73.62%

Water 274 641.20     190 298.80      -416 528.73                 89.59% 151.66%

Sanitation 773 749.65     285 596.70      -281 122.52                 26.54% 36.33%

Refuse 538 085.05     186 654.70      -262 262.31                 36.19% 48.74%  

It should be noted that no consumer debt were written off during the year under review. 

 

 

 

F. Property Rates: 
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Description Number SiteValues AgriLand SiteRates AgriLand Total

RESIDENTIAL 1570 106 922 500.00  -                            467 720.82                                        -                467 720.82     

RESIDENTIAL MUNICIPALITY 931 21 558 500.00    -                            -                                                       -                -                   

RDP HOUSES 190 4 185 500.00       -                            -                                                       -                -                   

COMMERCIAL 69 22 329 500.00    -                            241 158.60                                        -                241 158.60     

GOVERNMENT 10 20 100 500.00    -                            27 135.67                                           -                27 135.67       

MUNICIPALITY 332 6 718 000.00       -                            -                                                       -                -                   

PUBLIC BENEFIT 23 10 122 000.00    -                            13 664.69                                           -                13 664.69       

AGRICULTURE 983 -                         852 627 750.00     -                                                       433 849.75  433 849.75     

AGRICULTURE REBATE 147 -                         200 859 510.00     -                                                       76 885.52    76 885.52       

TOTALS 4255 191 936 500.00  1 053 487 260.00  749 679.78                                        510 735.27  1 260 415.05 

Valuations Rates calculated

 



 

 

Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total 

a) Property valuation:     

   - Year of last valuation 2008   

   - Regularity of valuation 
Tsolwana Municipality received an exemption and the next property valuation date 
will be 1 July 2013 effective 1 July 2014. 

4 years   

b) Indigent Policy:     

   - Quantity (number of households affected) 1639   

   - Quantum (total value across municipality)    

c) Creditors – 5 Highest as at 30 June 2012: R (000s)   

   

          

  SUPPLIER 60 days 90 days   

  GOBA PTY  1 717 930.03                  -      

  PWC 

     367 

291.28                  -      

  

AUDITOR 

GENERAL 

     119 

267.26                  -      

  SCOTT'S GARAGE 

       33 

032.36   68 196.18    

  SEBATA 

       65 

945.58                  -      

  

 

 2 303 466.51   68 196.18    

          
 

n/a n/a 

       

d) External Loans: R (000s) R (000s) 

  Tsolwana Municipality did not enter into any external loans for the period under 
review. 

n/a n/a 
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2. Planning and Development function’s performance 

Function: Planning and Development     

Sub Function: Economic Development     

     

Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: 
  

Includes all activities associated with economic development 
initiatives 

    

      

Description of the Activity: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

The function of economic planning / development within the 
municipality is administered as follows and includes: 

    

<List administration of each function here: The municipality in 
consultation with all stakeholders does plan and implement led 
activities. 
> 

    

These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

<Mandate to plan and implement led projects. 
 

    

The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

<To create conditions conducive for economic development to take 
place.> 

    

The key issues for 2011/12 are:     

<Budgeting for LED, implementation plan and monitoring>     

      

      

Analysis of the Function: 
1 

  
  
  
  
  

2 
  
  

3 
  
  

4 
  
  

5 
  
  
  

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

Number and cost to employer of all economic development 
personnel: 

  R (000s) 

 - Professional (Directors / Managers) <1> <483000> 

 - Non-professional (Clerical / Administrative) <1> <67000> 

 - Temporary <1> <12000> 

 - Contract <1> <67000> 

Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

Detail and cost of incentives for business investment:   R (000s) 

<list details>   <n/a> 

Note: list incentives by project, with total actual cost to municipality 
for year 

    

Detail and cost of other urban renewal strategies:   R (000s) 

<list details>   <n/a> 

Note: list strategies by project, with total actual cost to municipality 
for year 
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6 
  
  
  
  

6 
  
  

Detail and cost of other rural development strategies:   R (000s) 

<list details>   <n/a> 

Note: list strategies by project, with total actual cost to municipality 
for year 

    

Number of people employed through job creation schemes:     

 - Short-term employment <n/a>   

 - Long-term employment <n/a>   

Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, and should only be based on direct employment as a result 
of municipal initiatives 

    

Number and cost to employer of all Building Inspectors employed:   R (000s) 

 - Number of Building Inspectors 1 <18000> 

 - Temporary     

 - Contract     

Note: total number to be calculated on a full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

Details of building plans:     

 - Number of building plans approved <12>   

 - Value of building plans approved <3800000>   

        

Reporting Level Detail Total 

  Note: Figures should be aggregated over year to include building 
plan approvals only 

    

7 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

  <list each grant or subsidy separately> <n/a> <value> 

  Note: total value of specific planning and development grants 
actually received during year to be recorded over the five quarters - 
Apr to Jun last year, Jul to Sep, Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun 
this year. 

    

 

3.  Community and social services function’s performance 

Function: Community and Social Services     

Sub Function: All inclusive     

    Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes all activities associated with the provision of community and 
social services 

    

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The function of provision of various community and social services 
within the municipality is administered as follows and includes: 

    

  The municipality is administering the implementation of social services 
within its area of jurisdictions. 

    



3 

 

 

 

 

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  To maitan and monitor the provisioning of social services.     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  To monitor and provide social services     

  The key issues for 2011/12 are:     

  Cleaning of parks,cleaningof streets both in town and township.     

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

1 Nature and extent of facilities provided: no of 
facilities: 

no of users: 

   - Library services <3> <125000> 

   - Museums and art galleries <n/a> <n/a> 

   - Other community halls/facilities <15> <35000> 

   - Cemeteries and crematoriums <n/a> <n/a> 

   - Child care (including creches etc) <19> <8000> 

   - Aged care (including aged homes, home help) <1> <45> 

   - Schools <24> <960> 

   - Sporting facilities (specify) <15> <85000> 

   - Parks < 500sq 
km> 

<7000> 

  Note: the facilities figure should agree with the assets register     

2 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with each 
community services function: 

  R(000s) 

   - Library services <3> <648000> 

   - Museums and art galleries <n/a> <cost> 

   - Other community halls/facilities <15> <27000000> 

   - Cemeteries and crematoriums <n/a> <n/a> 

   - Child care <19> <76000> 

   - Aged care <1> <45000> 

   - Schools <24> <8600000> 

   - Sporting facilities <15> <24000000> 

   - Parks <1> <7000> 
  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 

basis, total cost to include total salary package 
    

6 Total operating cost of community and social services function   R (000s) 

    

Key Performance Area 
Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against 

Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance 
Current Target 

        



4 

 

 

 

 

• Approved 
HIV/AIDS 
strategy; 

 

• Approved 
Disaster 
management 
policy 
frameworks 
and plans 
(Metro and 
DM) 

< List here the actual performance achieved over the financial year, 
and the variance between performance planned and actual 
performance, providing an explanation of the variance. Also provide 
details of any improvements planned for next year. The municipality 
has appointed a Hiv coordinator and is working close with the 
department and CHDM.  
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

5. Housing function’s performance 

Function: Housing 

Sub Function: N/A 

    Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes all activities associated with provision of housing     

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The function of provision of housing within the municipality is 
administered as follows and includes: 

    

  <List administration of each function here: this should detail what is 
offered, and how it is offered to the community> 

1. Administering the housing functions – sales admin 
2. Preparing Deeds of Sales – before signed by MM 
3. Updating housing files – as per beneficiaries requests 
4. Updating Housing Needs Forms 
5.  

    

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  <List here> 
1. Identify the land for housing needs 
2. Identify beneficiaries 
3. Apply for housing projects to DofHS 
4. Assist the DHS of any information they need 

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  <List here> 
1. To give shelter to our people 

    

  The key issues for 2012/13 are:     
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  <List here> 
1. To apply for Batch 4 Housing Project with DHS 

    

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):> 
1.  

    

1 Number and cost of all personnel associated with provision of 
municipal housing: 

  R (17000) 

   - Professional (Architects/Consultants) – <N/A> <cost> 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) <N/A> <cost> 

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) <1> <R13000> 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) <N/A> <cost> 

   - Temporary <N/A> <cost> 

   - Contract <1> <R4000> 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package. Professional includes 
project design, Field includes all tradespersons. 

    

2 Number and total value of housing projects planned and current:   R (000s) 

   - Current (financial year after year reported on) <3641> <value> 

   - Planned (future years) 
1. Zola Village 300 
2. Phakamisa Village 150 
3. Thornhill Village 700 
4. Mitford Village 500 
5. Rocklands Village 300 
6. Baccles Farm 300 
7. Tendergate Village 700 
8. Khayalethu Village 200 
 
9. Springroove Village 300 
1. Thembalethu Village 150 
11. Tarkastad 41 

<2> <value> 

  Note: provide total project and project value as per initial or revised 
budget 

    

3 Total type, number and value of housing provided:   R (36.6m) 

   <list details by type of dwelling, see below> RDP Houses 40sqm 
1. Mitford 700 
2. Tentergate/Khayalethu 1101 
3. Kwezi 512 
4. Springroove/Thembalethu 535 
5. Baccles Farm/Rocklands 688 

 

<3536> <R36.6m> 

  Note: total number and total value of housing provided during financial 
year 

    

4 Total number and value of rent received from municipal owned rental 
units 

  R (000s) 

  <list details, including number of units handed over to residents> N/A <342> <2565000> 

5 Estimated backlog in number of (and costs to build) housing:   R (000s) 

   <list details by type of dwelling, see below> <n/a> <n/a> 
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  Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted 
capital housing programmes 

    

6 Type of habitat breakdown:     

   - number of people living in a house or brick structure <8432>   

   - number of people living in a traditional dwelling <290>   

   - number of people living in a flat in a block of flats <n/a>   

   - number of people living in a town/cluster/semi-detached group 
dwelling 

<n/a>   

   - number of people living in an informal dwelling or shack <n/a>   

   - number of people living in a room/flatlet <n/a>   

Reporting Level Detail Total 8000 

7 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

  <list each grant or subsidy separately> S <3493> <20259400> 

  Note: total value of specific housing grants actually received during 
year to be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun last year, Jul to 
Sep, Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year. 

    

8 Total operating cost of housing function N/A N/A  R (89000) 

     

Key Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against 
Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance 

Current Target 

        

<List at least five 
key performance 
areas relative to the 
above function as 
articulated in the 
2012/13 budget 
here> 

< List here the actual performance achieved over the financial year, 
and the variance between performance planned and actual 
performance, providing an explanation of the variance. Also provide 
details of any improvements planned for next year. 

1. More than 3530 people got new RDP houses 
2. Application for 3991 has been submitted to DHS 
3. Good working relations with DHS 
4. Staff shortage 
5. No budget 

    

        

 

3.  Waste management function’s performance 

Function: Waste Management 

Sub Function: Solid Waste 

    Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes refuse removal, solid waste disposal and landfill, street 
cleaning and recycling 

    

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The refuse collection functions of the municipality are administered as 
follows and include: 

    

  The municipality is managing solid waste and is collecting it twice in 
both urban town. 
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  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  Cleaning of towns     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  To make sure that all towns are clean and the environment is clean.     

  The key issues for 2011/12 are:     

  Registration of solid waste, cleaning of towns.     

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with refuse 
removal: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) <1> <874000> 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) <1> <98000> 

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) <1> <68000> 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) <n/a> <cost> 

   - Temporary <25> <2666400> 

   - Contract <1> <64000> 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

2 Number of households receiving regular refuse removal services, and 
frequency and cost of service: 

  R (000s) 

   - Removed by municipality at least once a week <8> <78000> 

   - Removed by municipality less often n/al> <n/a> 

   - Communal refuse dump used <n/a> <n/a> 

   - Own refuse dump <n/a>   

   - No rubbish disposal <n/a>   

  Note: if other intervals of services are available, please provide details     

3 Total and projected tonnage of all refuse disposed:     

   - Domestic/Commercial <470> <780> 

   - Garden <545> <1230> 

  Note: provide total tonnage for current and future years activity     

4 Total number, capacity and life expectancy of refuse disposal sites:     

   - Domestic/Commercial (number) <100> <5> 

   - Garden (number) <100> <5> 

  Note: provide the number of tip sites, their total current capacity and 
the expected lifespan as at end of reporting period 

    

        

Reporting Level Detail Total 3850420 

5 Anticipated expansion of refuse removal service:   R (000s) 

   - Domestic/Commercial 300square> 1.8m> 

   - Garden <n/a> n/a> 

  Note: provide total number of households anticipated to benefit and 
total additional operating cost per year to the municipality 
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6 Free Basic Service Provision:     

   - Quantity (number of households affected) 8546>   

   - Quantum (value to each household) <5740>   

  Note: Provide details of how many households receive the FBS 
provision, and the average value it means per household. Describe in 
detail the level of Free Basic Services provided. 

    

7 Total operating cost of solid waste management function   R (1.8m) 

 

 

 

4. Waste water management 

 
 

   Function: Waste Water Management 

Sub Function: Sewerage etc 

    Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

        

Overview: Includes provision of sewerage services not including infrastructure 
and water purification, also includes toilet facilities 

    

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The sewerage functions of the municipality are administered as 
follows and include: 

    

  <List administration of each function here: this should detail what is 
offered, and how it is offered to the community> 
- Bucket system: Buckets are collected by 
Sanitation tractor twice a week in each household. 
- Flushed toilets with septic tanks: Septic tanks 
are being emptied by Honey sucker once a month. 
- Flushed toilets connected to sewerage 
system. 
- Pit ventilated latrines. 

    

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  <List here>     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  <List here>     

  The key issues for 200X/0Y are:     

  <List here>     
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Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with 
sewerage functions: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 7 1 001 462 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 2 103 540 

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 1 120 293 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 18 1 617 340 

   - Temporary 4 103 540 

   - Contract 0 0 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

2 Number of households with sewerage services, and type and cost of 
service: 

  R (000s) 

   - Flush toilet (connected to sewerage system) 12566 15 531 576 

   - Flush toilet (with septic tank) 349 431 364 

   - Chemical toilet 0 0 

   - Pit latrine with ventilation 5842 185 785 825 

   - Pit latrine without ventilation 0 0 

   - Bucket latrine 776 620 366 

   - No toilet provision 245 0 

  Note: if other types of services are available, please provide details     

3 Anticipated expansion of sewerage:   R (000s) 

   - Flush/chemical toilet       1021 1 200 000 

   - Pit latrine          - 8 500 000 

   - Bucket latrine 0 0 

   - No toilet provision 0 0 

  Note: provide total number of households anticipated to benefit and 
total additional operating cost per year to the municipality 

    

4 Free Basic Service Provision:     

   - Quantity (number of households affected) 1965   

   - Quantum (value to each household) <value>   

Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

  Note: Provide details of how many households receive the FBS 
provision, and the average value it means per household. Describe in 
detail the level of Free Basic Services provided. 

    

5 Total operating cost of sewerage function   R (000s) 

     

5. Road maintenance’s function’s performance 

Function: Road Transport 

Sub Function: Roads 

    Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 
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Overview: Construction and maintenance of roads within the municipality's 
jurisdiction 

    

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The road maintenance and construction responsibilities of the 
municipality are administered as follows and include:  

Tsolwana Municipality is responsible for Access roads 

of ±234km. The municipality does not have plant to 

maintain the roads. MIG funds are being utilised for 

construction of roads through service providers. EPWP 

personnel are playing a vital role for the cleaning of 

culverts, water channels and patching of potholes. 

    

  <List administration of each function here: this should detail what is 
offered, and how it is offered to the community> 

- Gravel Roads  
- Pavered Roads 
- Stormwater Facilities e.g channels, drains  
- Bridges 
- Walkways 
- Roads and street maintenance  
- Stormwater Maintenance  

    

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  <List here>     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to: To provide safe, non-
corrugated roads to all the users  
 

    

  <List here>     

  The key issues for 200X/0Y are:     

  <List here>     

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with road 
maintenance and construction: 
Most of the personnel under Roads Section (General workers) 
are not permanent. Some of the personnel are being shared 
between Community Services and Technical Services.  

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 1 380 425 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 1 11 396  

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 0 0 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 2 15 782 

   - Temporary 9 20 146 

   - Contract 1 11 668 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package 
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2 Total number, kilometres and total value of road projects planned and 
current: 

  R (000s) 

   - New bitumenised (number) 0 0 

   - Existing re-tarred (number) 12 0 

   - New gravel (number) 4 1790021.23 

   - Existing re-sheeted (number) 0 0 

  Note: if other types of road projects, please provide details     

3 Total kilometres and maintenance cost associated with existing roads 
provided 
Due to limited budget there is no much that is done to maintain 
surface road 

  R (000s) 

   - Tar 0 0 

   - Gravel 0 0 

  Note: if other types of road provided, please provide details     

4 Average frequency and cost of re-tarring, re-sheeting roads 
Due to limited budget there is no much that is done to maintain 
surface road 

  R (000s) 

   - Tar 0 <cost> 

   - Gravel     

  Note: based on maintenance records     

5 Estimated backlog in number of roads, showing kilometres and capital 
cost  

  R (000s) 

   - Tar 211 533 848 990 

   - Gravel     

        

Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

  Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted 
road construction programme 

    

6 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

  <list each grant or subsidy separately> 
MIG 

4 1 790 021 

  Note: total value of specific road grants actually received during year 
to be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun this year, Jul to Sep, 
Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year. 

    

7 Total operating cost of road construction and maintenance function   0 

     

 

 

 

 

6. Water distribution function’s performance 

Function: Water 

Sub Function: Water Distribution 
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Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

        

Overview: Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of water     

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The water purchase and distribution functions of the municipality are 

administered as follows and include: Yard connections are 

regarded as the high level of service and the provision 

of communal standpipes being the low or basic level of 

service. In the urban areas, all the provision is a high 

level of service that is provided and in some parts of 

the rural areas a basic level of service is provided. 

    

  <List administration of each function here: this should detail what is 
offered, and how it is offered to the community> 
- Piped water inside dwelling: 
- Piped water inside yard:  
- Communal taps: People are accessing drinking with 
RDP standard. 
- Jojo tanks: Drinking water are delivered by our Water 
trucks. 

    

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which sits within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  <List here>     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to: Provide clean 
drinking water for all 

    

  <List here>     

  The key issues for 200X/0Y are:     

  <List here>     

        

        

` <Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

        

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with the 
water distribution function: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 7 1001462.56 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 2 103540.80 

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 1 120293.04 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 20 1 776 166.10 

   - Temporary 4 97 680 

   - Contract 0 0 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package. 

    

2 Percentage of total water usage per month      

  <Insert table showing monthly water usage > 39605kl 150499.00 

  Note: this will therefore highlight percentage of total water stock used 
per month 
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3 Total volume and cost of bulk water purchases in kilolitres and rand, 
by category of consumer 

  R (000s) 

   - Category 1 <insert here> 9114kl  92063.80 

   - Category 2 <insert here> <volume> <cost> 

   - Category 3 <insert here> <volume> <cost> 

   - Category 4 <insert here> <volume> <cost> 

4 Total volume and receipts for bulk water sales in kilolitres and rand, 
by category of consumer: 

  R (000s) 

   - Category 1 <insert here> (total number of households) 30 R4 003.20 

   - Category 2 <insert here> (total number of households) <volume> <cost> 

   - Category 3 <insert here> (total number of households) <volume> <cost> 

   - Category 4 <insert here> (total number of households) <volume> <cost> 

5 Total year-to-date water losses in kilolitres and rand   R (000s) 

  <detail total> <volume> <cost> 

Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

6 Number of households with water service, and type and cost of 
service: 

  R (000s) 

   - Piped water inside dwelling 7981 4 788 600 

   - Piped water inside yard 2513 1 005 200 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from 
dwelling 

3 867 1 653 869.72 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from 
dwelling 

2014 132 000 

   - Borehole   

   - Spring   

   - Rain-water tank   

  Note: if other types of services are available, please provide details     

7 Number and cost of new connections:   R (000s) 

  <detail total> 15 19 697.86 

8 Number and cost of disconnections and reconnections:   R (000s) 

  <detail total> 21 9 359.25 

9 Number and total value of water projects planned and current:   R (000s) 

   - Current (financial year after year reported on) 10 811 404.77 

   - Planned (future years)  ` 

  Note: provide total project and project value as per initial or revised 
budget 

    

10 Anticipated expansion of water service:   R (000s) 

   - Piped water inside dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water inside yard <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Borehole <total> <cost> 

   - Spring <total> <cost> 

   - Rain-water tank <total> <cost> 

  Note: provide total number of households anticipated to benefit and 
total additional operating cost per year to the municipality 

    

11 Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) water connection:   R (000s) 
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There are no households without basic level of service 

   - Piped water inside dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water inside yard <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling <total> <cost> 

   - Borehole <total> <cost> 

   - Spring <total> <cost> 

   - Rain-water tank <total> <cost> 

  Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted 
capital housing programmes 

    

12 Free Basic Service Provision:     

   - Quantity (number of households affected) <total>   

   - Quantum (value to each household) <value>   

  Note: Provide details of how many households receive the FBS 
provision, and the average value it means per household. Describe in 
detail the level of Free Basic Services provided. 

    

13 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

  <list each grant or subsidy separately> <total> <value> 

  Note: total value of specific water grants actually received during year 
to be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun last year, Jul to Sep, 
Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year. 

    

14 Total operating cost of water distribution function   R (000s) 

     

7. Electricity distribution function’s performance 

 

Function: Electricity 

Sub Function: Electricity Distribution 

    Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

        

Overview: Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of electricity     

        

Description of the 
Activity: 

The electricity purchase and distribution functions of the 

municipality are administered as follows and include: Tsolwana 

Municipality is the registered licence holder for 

supplying of electricity within the Tarkastad and 

part of Hofmeyer town ( Eluxolweni & Twinsville 

supplied by Eskom). The supply of electricity in the 

rural areas is done directly by ESKOM. 

 

    

  The municipality is supplying urban areas Tarkastad 
and Hofmeyer, maintenance of electricity is being 
outsourced to a local electrical contractor for day to 
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day maintenance as required from time to time 

  These services extend to include <function/area>, but do not take 
account of <function/area> which resides within the jurisdiction of 
<national/provincial/other private sector> government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  <List here>     

  The strategic objectives of this function are to: Connect electricity to 
all households and provide alternative energy. 

    

  <List here>     

  The key issues for 200X/0Y are:     

  <List here>     

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

<Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):>     

        

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with the 
electricity distribution function: 
This function is outsourced to a Service Provider 

 ESKOM 6709200.15 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) <total> <cost> 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) <total> <cost> 

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) <total> <cost> 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) <total> <cost> 

   - Temporary <total> <cost> 

   - Contract <total> <cost> 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) 
basis, total cost to include total salary package. 

    

2 Total quantity and cost of bulk electricity purchases in kilowatt hours 
and rand, by category of consumer 

  R (000s) 

   - Residential 9164166.38(kWh) 6709200.15 

   - Commercial <volume> <cost> 

   - Industrial <volume> <cost> 

   - Mining <volume> <cost> 

   - Agriculture <volume> <cost> 

   - Other <volume> <cost> 

3 Total quantity and receipts for bulk electricity sales in kilowatt hours 
and rand, by category of consumer: 

  R (000s) 

   - Household <volume> <cost> 

   - Commercial <volume> <cost> 

   - Industrial <volume> <cost> 

   - Mining <volume> <cost> 

   - Agriculture <volume> <cost> 

   - Other <volume> <cost> 

4 Total year-to-date electricity losses in kilowatt hours and rand   R (000s) 

  <detail total> <volume> <cost> 
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5 Number of households with electricity access, and type and cost of 
service: 

  R (000s) 

Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 

   - Electrified areas     

      - Municipal <total> <cost> 

      - Eskom 9164166.38 6709200.15 

   - Alternate energy source     

      - Gas <total> <cost> 

      - Paraffin <total> <cost> 

      - Solar <total> <cost> 

      - Wood <total> <cost> 

   - Non electrified <total> <cost> 

  Note: if other types of services are available, please provide details     

6 Number and cost of new connections:   R (000s) 

  <detail total> 200(units) 2000000 

7 Number and cost of disconnections and reconnections   R (000s) 

  <detail total> <volume> <cost> 

8 Number and total value of electrification projects planned and current:   R (000s) 

   - Current (financial year after year reported on) (200 units) 2000000 

   - Planned (future years) <total> <cost> 

  Note: provide total project and project value as per initial or revised 
budget 

    

9 Anticipated expansion of electricity service:   R (000s) 

  <detail total> <total> 50000000 

  Note: provide total number of households anticipated to benefit and 
total additional operating cost per year to the municipality 

    

10 Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) water connection:   R (000s) 

  <detail total> 516 516000000 

  Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted 
capital housing programmes 

    

11 Free Basic Service Provision:   ` 

   - Quantity (number of households affected) 5763hh   

   - Quantum (value to each household) 3572142.53   

  Note: Provide details of how many households receive the FBS 
provision, and the average value it means per household. Describe in 
detail the level of Free Basic Services provided. 

    

12 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

  CAPEX 334 3442388.57 

  Note: total value of specific electricity grants actually received during 
year to be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun last year, Jul to 
Sep, Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year. 

    

13 Total operating cost of electricity distribution function   6709200.15 
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B: ANNEXURE 

The annexure is made up of the following documents arranged in the sequence below: 

 

1. Full AG reports; 

2. Audited Annual Financial Statements; 

3. Annual performance information; 

4. Plan of action of the municipality to address findings of the AG report; 

5. Audit committee report; 

6. Approved Municipal Structure (Staff establishment); and 

7. Council resolutions adopting the Annual Report 
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1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES APPLIED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and 
are in accordance with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal 
Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal 
Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).  
 
Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by  the GRAP 
reporting framework , have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 8,10 and 11 of 
GRAP 3 (Revised – February 2010) and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board 
 

 
The Municipality resolved to early adopt the following GRAP standards which have been 
issued but are not effective yet. 

 

Standard Description Effective Date

GRAP 1 (Revised – Mar 2012) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 April 2013 

GRAP 3 (Revised – Mar 2012) Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors 

1 April 2013 

GRAP 9 (Revised – Mar 2012) Revenue from Exchange Transactions 1 April 2013 

GRAP 12 (Revised – Mar 2012) Inventories 1 April 2013 

GRAP 13 (Revised – Mar 2012) Leases 1 April 2013 

GRAP 16 (Revised – Mar 2012) Investment Property 1 April 2013 

GRAP 17 (Revised – Mar 2012) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 April 2013 

GRAP 21 (Original – Mar 2009) Impairment of non-cash-generating 
assets 

1 April 2012 

GRAP 23 (Original – Feb 2008) Revenue from Non-Exchange 
Transactions 

1 April 2012 

GRAP 25 (Original – Nov 2009) Employee Benefits 1 April 2013 

GRAP 26 (Original – Mar 2009) Impairment of cash-generating assets 1 April 2012 

GRAP 27 (Revised – Mar 2012) Agriculture 1 April 2013 

GRAP 31 (Revised – Mar 2012) Intangible Assets 1 April 2013 

GRAP 104 (Original – Oct 2009) Financial Instruments 1 April 2012 

IGRAP 16 (Issued – Mar 2012) Intangible Assets – Website Costs 1 April 2013 
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A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied 
except where an exemption or transitional provision has been granted, are disclosed below.  
 
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is 
permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP. 
 
The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year’s 
financial statements, unless explicitly stated.  The details of any changes in accounting 
policies are explained in the relevant notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
In terms of Directive 7:  “The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of 
GRAP” issued by the Accounting Standards Board, the Municipality applied deemed cost to 
Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible where the acquisition 
cost of an asset could not be determined. 
 

 
1.2.  PRESENTATION CURRENCY 
 
 Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African Rand and at actual 

values. Financial values are rounded to the nearest one Rand. No foreign exchange 
transactions are included in the statements. 

 
1.3. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 
 
 These annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
1.4. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

 
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is 
amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated, unless a standard of GRAP does 
not require the restatements of comparative information.  The nature and reason for the 
reclassification is disclosed.  Where material accounting errors have been identified in the 
current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly.  Where there has been a change in accounting policy 
in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the 
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. 
 

1.5. MATERIALITY 
 

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or 
collectively, influence the decision or assessments of users made on the basis of the 
financial statements.  Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or 
misstatements judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The nature or size of the 
information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor.  Materiality is 
determined as 1% of total expenditure.  
 

1.6. PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION 
 

As noted, GRAP 24 is not effective yet, however budget information required in terms of 
GRAP 1 (Revised – March 2012) paragraph 11 to 14 have been disclosed in the financial 
statements.  The presentation of budget information complies with the formats contained in 
the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations. 
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1.7. STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT 

NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
 

The following GRAP 
standards have 
been issued but 
are not yet 
effective and 
have not been 
early adopted by 
the Municipality: 

Standard 

Description Effective Date 

GRAP 6 

(Revised – Nov 2010 

Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the 
circumstances in which consolidated and 
separate financial statements are to be prepared 
and the information to be included in those 
financial statements so that the consolidated 
financial statements reflect the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of 
an economic entity as a single entity. 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not have any entities at this 
stage to be consolidated. 

Unknown 

GRAP 7 

(Revised – Mar 2012) 

Investments in Associate 

This Standard prescribes the accounting 
treatment for investments in joint ventures where 
the investment in the associate leads to the 
holding of an ownership interest in the form of a 
shareholding or other form of interest in the net 
assets. 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not participate in such business 
transactions. 

1 April 2013 

GRAP 8 

(Revised – Nov 2010) 

Interest in Joint Ventures 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the 
accounting treatment of jointly controlled 
operations, jointly controlled assets and jointly 
controlled entities and to provide alternatives for 
the recognition of interests in jointly controlled 
entities. 
 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality is not involved in any joint ventures. 

 

Unknown 
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GRAP 18 

(Original – Feb 2011) 

Segment Reporting 

The objective of this Standard is to establish 
principles for reporting financial information by 
segments. 
 

Information to a large extent is already included in 
the appendices to the annual financial statements 
which do not form part of the audited financial 
statements.  

Unknown 

GRAP 24 

(Original – Nov 2007) 

 

Presentation of Budget Information in 
Financial Statements 

This Standard requires a comparison of budget 
mounts and the actual amounts arising from 
execution of the budget to be included in the 
financial statements of entities that are required 
to, or elect to, make publicly available their 
approved budget(s) and for which they are, 
therefore, held publicly accountable. The 
Standard also requires disclosure of an 
explanation of the reasons for material differences 
between the budget and actual amounts. 
 

Information to a large extent is already included in 
the notes to the annual financial statements and 
the impact is assessed to not be significant.  

1 April 2012 

GRAP 103 

(Original – July 2008) 

 

Heritage Assets 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the 
accounting treatment for heritage assets and 
related disclosure requirements. 
 

No adjustments necessary as the Municipality 
has no significant heritage assets other than the 
assets currently accounted for in terms of GRAP 
17. 

1 April 2012 

GRAP 105 

(Original – Nov 2010) 

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under 
Common Control 

 

The objective of this Standard is to establish 
accounting principles for the acquirer and 
transferor in a transfer of functions between 
entities under common control. 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not participate in such business 
transactions. 

 

 

 

 

Unknown 
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GRAP 106 

(Original – Nov 2010) 

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not 
Under Common Control 

The objective of this Standard is to establish 
accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer 
of functions between entities not under common 
control. 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not participate in such business 
transactions. 

Unknown 

GRAP 107 

(Original – Nov 2010) 

Mergers 

The objective of this Standard is to establish 
accounting principles for the combined entity and 
combining entities in a merger. 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not participate in such business 
transactions. 

Unknown 

IGRAP 12 Jointly Controlled Entities non-monetary 
contributions 

The objective of this Interpretation of the 
Standard is to prescribe the treatment of 
profit/loss when an asset is sold or contributed by 
the venturer to a Jointly Controlled Entity (JCE). 

 

No significant impact is expected as the 
Municipality does not have any JCE’s at this 
stage. 

 

 
These standards, amendments and interpretations will not have a significant impact on the 
Municipality once implemented. 

 
 
1.8. LEASES 
 
1.8.1 Municipality as Lessee 
 

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards 
associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the Municipality. Property, plant 
and equipment or intangible assets (excluding licensing agreements for such items as 
motion picture films, video recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights) 
subject to finance lease agreements are initially recognised at the lower of the asset’s fair 
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  The corresponding 
liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the 
sum of the minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for 
the effect of interest.  In discounting the lease payments, the Municipality uses the 
interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual value 
to the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred. 

 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with 
the stated accounting policies applicable to property, plant and equipment or intangibles.  
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The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are allocated between the 
lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method.  
Lease finance costs are expensed when incurred.  The accounting policies relating to de-
recognition of financial instruments are applied to lease payables. 

 
Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.  
Operating lease rentals are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease.  The difference between the straight-lined expenses and actual payments 
made will give rise to a liability.  The Municipality shall recognise the aggregate benefit of 
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term, on a straight-line basis 
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the lessee’s 
benefit from the use of the leased asset. 
 
 

1.8.2 Municipality as Lessor 
 

Under a finance lease, the Municipality recognises the lease payments to be received in 
terms of a lease agreement as an asset (receivable).  The receivable is calculated as the 
sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus any unguaranteed residual 
accruing to the Municipality, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease.  The 
receivable is reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments received, with the 
interest portion being recognised as interest revenue on a time proportionate basis.  The 
accounting policies relating to de-recognition and impairment of financial instruments are 
applied to lease receivables. 

 
Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.  
Operating lease revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease.  The difference between the straight-lined revenue and actual payments 
received will give rise to an asset.  The Municipality shall recognise the aggregate cost of 
incentives as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term, on a straight-line basis 
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern over which the 
benefit of the leased asset is diminished. 

 
1.9. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS 
 

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions.  If these specific 
conditions are not met, the monies received are repayable. 
 
Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the 
Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent government grants, subsidies 
and contributions from the public.  

 
This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the 
creation and utilisation of this creditor: 

 
 Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is received. 
 When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met are transferred 

to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part of 

the general investments of the Municipality until it is utilised. 
 Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it 

is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. If it is the Municipality’s 
interest it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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1.10. UNPAID CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS 
 

Unpaid conditional grants are assets in terms of the Framework that are separately 
reflected on the Statement of Financial Position.  The asset is recognised when the 
Municipality has an enforceable right to receive the grant or if it is virtually certain that it 
will be received based on that grant conditions have been met.  They represent unpaid 
government grants, subsidies and contributions from the public. 

 
The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of the grant is receivables: 

 
 Unpaid conditional grants are recognised as an asset when the grant is receivable. 

 
 
 
 
1.11.  UNSPENT PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Public contributions are subject to specific conditions.  If these specific conditions are not 
met, the monies received are repayable. 
 
Unspent public contributions are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the 
Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent contributions from the public.  

 
This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the 
creation and utilisation of this creditor: 

 
 Unspent public contributions are recognised as a liability when the grant is received. 
 When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met are transferred 

to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part of 

the general investments of the municipality until it is utilised. 
 Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with the public 

contribution conditions. If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the 
creditor. If it is the municipality’s interest it is recognised as interest earned in the 
Statement of Financial Performance. 

 
 
1.12. PROVISIONS 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Municipality has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, it is possible that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the provision can be made.  Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of future outflows of resources.  Where the effect 
is material, non-current provisions are discounted to their present value using a discount rate 
that reflects the market’s current assessment of the time value of money, adjusted for risks 
specific to the liability (for example in the case of obligations for the rehabilitation of land). 

 
The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset.  A contingent 
liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is remote.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is 
possible. 

 
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the 
amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.  Gains 
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from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a provision.  
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.  The present obligation under an 
onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision. 

 
A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following criteria over and 
above the recognition criteria of a provision have been met: 

 
(a) The Municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least: 

 
 the business or part of a business concerned; 
 the principal locations affected; 
 the location, function and approximate number of employees who will be 

compensated for terminating their services; 
 the expenditures that will be undertaken;  and 
 when the plan will be implemented. 

 
(b) The Municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the 

restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those 
affected by it. 

 
The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. 

 
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or 
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the provision shall be de-
recognised. 

 
1.13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 

(a) Post Retirement Medical Obligations 
 

The Municipality provides post-retirement medical benefits by subsidizing the medical 
aid contributions of certain retired staff according to the rules of the medical aid funds. 
Council pays 60% as contribution and the remaining 40% are paid by the members.  
The entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in 
service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The 
present value of the defined benefit liability is actuarially determined in accordance with 
GRAP 25 – Employee benefits (using a discount rate applicable to high quality 
government bonds). The plan is unfunded.   

 
These contributions are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance when 
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution. The liability 
was calculated by means of the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. The 
liability in respect of current pensioners is regarded as fully accrued, and is therefore 
not split between a past (or accrued) and future in-service element. The liability is 
recognised at the fair value of the obligation.  Payments made by the Municipality are 
set-off against the liability, including notional interest, resulting from the valuation by the 
actuaries and are charged against the Statement of Financial Performance as 
employee benefits upon valuation. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions, is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically by 
independent qualified actuaries.  
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(b) Long Service Awards 
 

Long service awards are provided to employees who achieve certain pre-determined 
milestones of service within the Municipality. The Municipality’s obligation under these 
plans is valued by independent qualified actuaries periodically and the corresponding 
liability is raised. Payments are set-off against the liability, including notional interest, 
resulting from the valuation by the actuaries and are charged against the Statement of 
Financial Performance as employee benefits upon valuation.  Defined benefit plans are 
post-employment plans other than defined contribution plans. 

 
Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions, is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically by 
independent qualified actuaries. 
 

(c) Provision for Staff Leave 
 

Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability is 
based on the total amount of leave days due to employees at year end and also on the 
total remuneration package of the employee.   
 
Accumulating leave is carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current 
period’s entitlement is not used in full. All unused leave will be paid out to the specific 
employee at the end of that employee’s employment term. 
 
Accumulated leave is vesting. 
 

(d) Provision for Performance Bonuses 
 
A provision, in respect of the liability relating to the anticipated costs of performance 
bonuses payable to Section 57 employees, is recognised as it accrue to Section 57 
employees . Municipal entities’ performance bonus provisions are based on the 
employment contract stipulations as well as previous performance bonus payment 
trends. 
 

(e) Pension and retirement fund obligations 
 
The Municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and councillors. Defined 
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay 
all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The 
contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged 
against income in the year they become payable.  Defined benefit plans are post-
employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans. The defined benefit 
funds, which are administered on a provincial basis, are actuarially valued tri-annually 
on the projected unit credit method basis.  Deficits identified are recovered through lump 
sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all 
participating municipalities. The contributions and lump sum payments are charged 
against income in the year they become payable.  Sufficient information is not available 
to use defined benefit accounting for a multi-employer plan.  As a result, defined benefit 
plans have been accounted for as if they were defined contribution plans. 
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(f) Other Short-term Employee Benefits 
 
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the 
entity recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service: 
 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the 
amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity 
recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the 
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; 
and 
  

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the 
benefits in the cost of an asset. 

 
 

1.14. BORROWING COSTS 
 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets are capitalised to the cost of that asset unless it is inappropriate to do 
so.  The amount of borrowing costs that the Municipality capitalises during a period shall 
not exceed the amount of borrowing costs it incurred during that period.  The Municipality 
ceases the capitalisation of borrowing costs when substantially all the activities to 
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs incurred 
other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance when incurred. 

 
 
1.15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
1.15.1 Initial Recognition 
 

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure 
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
year.  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an 
asset if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as 
assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost.  The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring 
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by the Municipality.  Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the cost.  The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. 
 
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment. 
 
Where an asset is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a 
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset 
on the date acquired. 
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Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary 
assets, the assets acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost).  It the acquired 
item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the 
asset(s) given up. 

 
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when 
the municipality expects to use them during more than one period.  Similarly, if the major 
spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of 
property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 
 

1.15.2 Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  Land is not 
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life. 

 
Where the Municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset 
being replaced and capitalises the new component.  Subsequent expenditure incurred on 
an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic benefits 
associated with the asset. 
 

1.15.3 Depreciation and Impairment  
 

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Depreciation of an asset begins when it is 
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that 
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are 
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.  The annual depreciation rates are based on the 
following estimated useful lives: 

 
Asset Class Asset Sub-grouping Useful Life (Yrs) 
Land None Indefinite 

Buildings None 100 

Infrastructure Electricity 6 - 50 

Roads 6 – 28 

Stormwater 7 - 44 

Community Assets None 100 

Leased Asset None 5 

Other Assets Computer equipment 5 - 15 

Furniture and Fittings 5 - 15 

Office equipment 5 - 15 

Plant and equipment 6 - 12 

Vehicles and Specialised Vehicles 5 - 10 
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Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
The impairment charged to the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the 
carrying value over the recoverable amount. 
 
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been 
recognised. A reversal of impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 
 

1.15.5 De-recognition 
 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed or 
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of 
the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
1.16.1 Initial Recognition 
 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.     
 
An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset when it: 
 
 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the entity and sold, 

transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a 
related contract, asset or liability; or 

 arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or 
other legal rights (excluding rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those 
rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations. 

 
The Municipality recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only 
when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Municipality and the cost or fair value of the 
asset can be measured reliably. 

 
Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they 
are capitalised.  Research expenditure is never capitalised, while development 
expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that: 

 
 the Municipality intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale; 
 it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset; 
 the Municipality has the resources to complete the project;  and 
 it is probable that the municipality will receive future economic benefits or service 

potential. 
 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
 

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary 
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost).  If the acquired item’s fair value was not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
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1.16.2 Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model 
 

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairments losses.  The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the 
useful life where that useful life is finite.  Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not 
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test. 

 
1.16.3 Amortisation and Impairment 
 

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over 
their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Amortisation of an asset 
begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that 
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are 
amortised separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation 
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.   The annual amortisation rates are based on the 
following estimated useful lives: 

 
Intangible Assets Years 
Computer Software and 

licenses 
5 

  
  

1.16.4 De-recognition 
 

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.  The 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 
1.17.1 Initial Recognition 
 

Investment property shall be recognised as an asset when, and only when: 
 

 it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are 
associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and 

 the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably. 
 
Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both 
land and buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or 
supply of goods or services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations.  
Property with a currently undetermined use is also classified as investment property. 

 
At initial recognition, the Municipality measures investment property at cost including 
transaction costs once it meets the definition of investment property.  However, where an 
investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it 
acquired the investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition.  The cost of self-constructed investment property is measured at 
cost. 
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Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. 
For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for 
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied 
property becomes an investment property, the Municipality accounts for such property in 
accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of 
change in use.   
 

1.17.2 Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of investment property are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Land is not depreciated as it is 
deemed to have an indefinite useful life. 

 
1.17.3 De-recognition 
 

Investment property is derecognised when it is disposed or when there are no further 
economic benefits expected from the use of the investment property.  The gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment property is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. 

 
1.18. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 
1.18.1 Initial Recognition 
 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying 
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or 
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.  Management 
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 
completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

 
1.18.2 Subsequent Measurement 
 

Non-current assets held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

 
A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held for sale, 
or while it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale. 

 
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as 
held for sale are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 

1.19. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
1.19.1 Cash-generating assets 
 

Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return.   

 
The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an 
asset is required, the municipality estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.  
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An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in those 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

 
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there 
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance. 
 

1.19.2 Non-cash-generating assets 
 
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 
 
The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an 
asset is required, the Municipality estimates the asset’s recoverable service amount.  
 
An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use.  If the recoverable service amount of an asset 
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss recorded in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.   
 
The value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset’s 
remaining service potential. The present value of the remaining service potential of the 
asset is determined using any one of the following approaches: 
 
 depreciated replacement cost approach - the present value of the remaining service 

potential of an asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. 
The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service 
potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset 
may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or 
through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost 
is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, 
less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the 
already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 

 
 restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its 

pre-impaired level. Under this approach, the present value of the remaining service 
potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of 



TSOLWANA MUNICIPALITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012  
 

Page 23 
 

 
 the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the 
asset before impairment. The latter cost is usually determined as the depreciated 
reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower. 

 
 service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of the 

asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service potential of 
the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units 
expected from the asset in its impaired state. As in the restoration cost approach, the 
current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before 
impairment is usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement 
cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower. 

 
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 
 
The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an 
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable 
service amount of that asset. 
 
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increased carrying amount 
of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.  Such a reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.20. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
 

Financial instruments, which include fixed deposits invested in registered commercial 
banks, are stated at amortised cost. 
 
Where investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment 
loss, which is recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identified. 
 
On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 
The carrying amounts of such investments are reduced to recognise any decline, other 
than a temporary decline, in the value of individual investments. 

 
1.21. INVENTORIES 
 
1.21.1 Initial Recognition 
 

Inventories comprise current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution during the 
ordinary course of business.  Inventories shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if, it 
is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will 
flow to the entity, and the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.  Inventories 
are initially recognised at cost.  Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus non-
recoverable taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their 
current location and condition.  Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or  
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produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the 
manufacturing process. 

 
Where inventory is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a 
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of the item on 
the date acquired. 

 
1.21.2 Subsequent Measurement 
 

Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and 
finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value unless they are to 
be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are measured at the lower of 
cost and current replacement cost.  Redundant and slow-moving inventories are 
identified and written down.  Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arose.  
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in 
net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the 
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal 
occurs. 

 
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the 
inventory was sold, distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for 
capitalisation to the cost of another asset. 

 
In general, the basis of allocating cost to inventory items is the weighted average method. 
Cost of land held for sale is assigned by using specific identification of their individual 
costs. 

 
1.22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include 
receivables from exchange transactions, cash and cash equivalents, annuity loans and 
payables. The future utilization of Unspent Conditional Grants is evaluated in order to 
determine whether it is treated as financial instruments.  
 

 
1.22.1 Initial Recognition 
 

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Municipality becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument at fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability  

 
1.22.2 Subsequent Measurement 
 

Financial Assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial assets at fair 
value, financial assets at amortised cost or financial assets at cost.  Financial Liabilities 
are categorised as either at fair value, financial liabilities at cost or financial liabilities 
carried at amortised cost (”other”).  The subsequent measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities depends on this categorisation.  
 
 
 

 
1.22.2.1 Receivables 
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Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and are subsequently 
measured amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
 
For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Municipality first assesses 
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and 
default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue).  If the Municipality 
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for 
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment. 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of 
the loss is measured as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that 
have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying 
amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery 
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the municipality. If, in a 
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. 
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

 
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate, if material. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the 
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. 
 

1.22.2.2 Payables and Annuity Loans 
 

Financial liabilities consist of Landfill sites provisions, payables and annuity loans.  They 
are categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest rate, 
which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest. 

 
1.22.2.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks.  Cash 
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three 
months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.  For the 
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, 
highly liquid deposits and net of bank overdrafts.  The Municipality categorises cash and 
cash equivalents as financial assets carried at amortised cost. 

 
 
1.22.3 De-recognition of Financial Instruments 
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1.22.3.1 Financial Assets 
 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

 
 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
 the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to 
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Municipality has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Municipality 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or 
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the 
old asset is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent of the 
Municipality’s continuing involvement in the asset.  

 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Municipality could be required to repay. 

 
When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option 
(including a cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of 
the Municipality’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the 
Municipality may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a 
cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of 
the Municipality’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the 
transferred asset and the option exercise price. 

 
1.22.3.2 Financial Liabilities 
 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

1.22.4 Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously 
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1.23. REVENUE  
 
1.23.1 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions 
 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Municipality 
received revenue from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in 
exchange.  Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the 
extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there 
is no liability to repay the amount. 

 
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the 
resources that have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset.  A 
corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is 
conditional.  The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to 
the grant are met.  Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue 
when the asset is recognised. 
 
Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlement to this revenue 
arises.  At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised. If the 
Municipality does not enforce its obligation to collect the revenue, is a subsequent event.  
Collection charges are recognised when such amounts are legally enforceable.  Penalty 
interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportionate basis as an exchange 
transaction. 

 
Fine Revenue constitutes both spot fines and summonses.  
 
Revenue from spot fines and summonses is recognised based on an estimation of future 
collections of fines issued based on prior period trends and collection percentages. 

 
Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions 
associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is to finance 
property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment 
qualifies for recognition and first becomes available for use by the Municipality.  Where 
public contributions have been received but the Municipality has not met the related 
conditions, it is recognised as an unspent public contribution (liability). 
 
Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are recognised 
when it can be measured reliably and is not being offset against the related expenses of 
repairs or renewals of the impaired assets. 

 
Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such items of property, 
plant and equipment qualifies for recognition and become available for use by the 
Municipality. 
 
All unclaimed deposits are initially recognised as a liability until 12 months expires, when 
all unclaimed deposits into the Municipality’s bank account will be treated as revenue as 
historical patterns have indicated that minimal unidentified deposits are reclaimed after a 
period of twelve months. This assessment is performed annually at 30 June. Therefore 
the substance of these transactions indicate that even though the prescription period for 
unclaimed monies is legally three years, it is reasonable to recognised all unclaimed 
monies older than twelve months as revenue.  Although unclaimed deposits are 
recognised as revenue after 12 months, the Municipality still keep record of these  
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unclaimed deposits for three years in the event that a party should submit a claim after 12 
months.  
 
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the Municipal Finance 
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from 
the responsible councillors or officials is virtually certain. 

 
Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
 
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Municipality recognises an asset, it 
also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value 
as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a 
liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the 
amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of 
the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently 
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the 
reduction in the liability will be recognised as revenue. 

 
1.23.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions 
 

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Municipality 
directly in return for services rendered/ goods sold, the value of which approximates the 
consideration received or receivable.  At the time of initial recognition the full amount of 
revenue is recognised. If the Municipality does not enforce its obligation to collect the 
revenue, is a subsequent event. 

 
Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption and a basic 
charge as per Council resolution.  Meters are read on a monthly basis and are 
recognised as revenue when invoiced.  Where the Municipality was unable to take the 
actual month’s reading of certain consumers, a provisional estimate of consumption for 
that month will be created. .  The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as 
revenue when invoiced.  Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made 
in the invoicing period in which meters have been read.  These adjustments are 
recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. 

 
Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards is recognised at the point of 
sale. It is estimated that pre-paid electricity is consumed within 5 to 7 days after date of 
purchase.   

 
Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears 
by applying the approved tariff to each property that has improvements.  Tariffs are 
determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on the 
recorded number of refuse points per property. 

 
Service charges relating to sanitation (sewerage) are recognised on a monthly basis in 
arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property that has improvements.  Tariffs 
are determined per category of property usage. In the case of residential property a fixed 
monthly tariff is levied and in the case of commercial property a tariff is levied based on 
the number of sewerage connection on the property. Service charges based on a basic 
charge as per Council resolution. 
 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 
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Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease agreement. 

 
Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when 
the relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant tariff.  This includes the issuing 
of licences and permits. 

 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and 
rewards in those goods are passed to the consumer. 

 
Revenue arising out of situations where the municipality acts as an agent on behalf of 
another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or commission payable to 
the municipality as compensation for executing the agreed services. 

 
The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement 
between the entity and the purchaser or user of the asset or service. It is measured at the 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of 
any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the entity. 

 
In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the 
amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents received or receivable. 
However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the 
consideration may be less than the nominal amount of cash received or receivable. When 
the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the 
consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of 
interest. The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either: 

 
 The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating; or 
 A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current 

cash sales price of the goods or services. 
 

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is 
recognised as interest revenue.  

 
When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a 
similar nature and value, the exchange is not regarded as a transaction that generates 
revenue. When goods are sold or services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods  
or services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. The 
revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted by the 
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or 
services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash 
equivalents transferred. 
 

 
1.24. RELATED PARTIES 
 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating 
decisions or if the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control. 
 
 
Related parties include: 

 Entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or 
are controlled by the reporting entity; 
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 Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the reporting entity that 
gives them significant influence over the entity, and close members of the family 
of any such individual; 

 Key management personnel, and close members of the family of key 
management personnel; and 

 Entities in which a substantial ownership interest is held, directly or indirectly, by 
any person described in the 2nd and 3rd bullet, or over which such a person is 
able to exercise significant influence. 

 
Key management personnel include: 

 All directors or members of the governing body of the entity, being the Executive 
Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and members of the Mayoral Committee. 

 Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the reporting entity being the Municipal Manager, Chief 
Financial Officer an all other managers reporting directly to the Municipal 
Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager. 

 
 

1.25. UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 
 

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is 
not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of 
government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in a form of a grant that is not 
permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003).  
Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense (measured at actual cost 
incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.  

 
1.26. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 
 

 Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance 
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000), 
the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the 
Municipality’s Supply Chain Management Policy.  Irregular expenditure excludes 
unauthorised expenditure.  Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure 
(measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 

 
1.27. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 
 

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have 
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of 
Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue 
in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

 
1.28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
  

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.  A contingent liability 
could also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
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be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measures with 
sufficient reliability. 
 
Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring contingent 
liabilities. 

 
1.29. PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION 

 
The presentation of budget information was prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of GRAP 1 as well as the formats contained in the Municipal Budget and 
Reporting Regulations.  The presentation of budget information is in line with the basis of 
accounting as per the GRAP Framework. GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information 
in Financial Statements is not yet effective.  This standard will bring new rules in respect 
of presentation of budget information. 
 

1.30. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 
 

In the process of applying the Municipality’s accounting policy, management has made 
the following significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions, which have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements: 

 
Post-retirement medical obligations and Long service awards 

 
The cost of post retirement medical obligations, long service awards and ex-gratia 
gratuities are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves 
making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Major assumptions used 
are disclosed in note 4 of the Annual Financial Statements.  Due to the long-term nature 
of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. 

 
Impairment of Receivables 

 
The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment of the 
extent to which debtors have defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of 
their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per 
service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors. 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s 
estimation. Infrastructure’s useful lives are based on technical estimates of the practical 
useful lives for the different infrastructure types, given engineering technical knowledge of 
the infrastructure types and service requirements.  For other assets and buildings 
management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service 
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life 
expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based 
  
 
on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their 
useful lives, and in what condition they will be at that time. 
 
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives 
and residual values of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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 The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of similar assets 
available for sale in the active market. Discussions with people within the specific 
industry were also held to determine useful lives. 

 Local Government Industry Guides was used to assist with the deemed cost and 
useful life of infrastructure assets. 

 The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the useful 
life of buildings. The Municipality also consulted with engineers to support the useful 
life of buildings, with specific reference to the structural design of buildings. 

 
Intangible Assets 
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management’s estimation. 
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service 
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life 
expectation, where appropriate.  
 
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives of 
intangible assets: 
 
 Reference was made to intangibles used within the Municipality and other 

municipalities to determine the useful life of the assets. 
 
Investment Property 
 
The useful lives of investment property are based on management’s estimation. 
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service 
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life 
expectation, where appropriate.  The estimation of residual values of assets is also based  
 
 
on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their 
economic lives, and in what condition they will be at that time. 
 
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives 
and valuation of investment property: 

 
 The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the useful 

life of buildings.  
 The Municipality also consulted with professional engineers and qualified valuators to 

support the useful life of buildings. 
 

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
 

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and 
when measuring contingent liabilities. Provisions are discounted where the time value 
effect is material.  
 
Revenue Recognition 

 
Accounting Policy 1.22.1 on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting 
Policy 1.22.2 on Revenue from Exchange Transactions describes the conditions under 
which revenue will be recognised by management of the Municipality.  
 
In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the 
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recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and 
GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions.). Specifically, whether the 
Municipality, when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of the goods and when services are rendered, whether the service 
has been performed.  Revenue from the issuing of spot fines and summonses has been 
recognised on the accrual basis using estimates of future collections based on the actual 
results of prior periods. The management of the Municipality is satisfied that recognition 
of the revenue in the current year is appropriate. 
 
Provision for Landfill Sites 

 
The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when the 
environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a qualified environmental 
engineer. The provision represents the net present value of the expected future cash 
flows to rehabilitate the landfill site at year end. To the extent that the obligations relate to 
an asset, it is capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Any subsequent changes to 
an obligation that did not relate to the initial related asset are charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance.  
 
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding provisions: 

 
 Professional engineers were utilised to determine the cost of rehabilitation of landfill 

sites as well as the remaining useful life of each specific landfill site. 

 Interest rates (investment rate) linked to prime was used to calculate the effect of 
time value of money. 

 
Provision for Task Implementation 

 
The provision at 30 June for Task Implementation represents the Municipality’s obligation 
towards qualifying officials as a result of a new national grading system for municipalities 
which came into effect on 1 October 2009. The calculation was based on the difference 
between the current basic salaries compared to the basic salaries as per the new TASK 
grading. The difference between these two packages was backdated to the 
implementation date of the TASK grading system. 
 
Provision for Staff leave 

 
Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agreements. Provision is 
made for the full cost of accrued leave at reporting date. This provision will be realised as 
employees take leave or when employment is terminated. 
 
Provision for Performance bonuses 

 
The provision for performance bonuses represents the best estimate of the obligation at 
year end and is based on historic patterns of payment of performance bonuses. 
Performance bonuses are subject to an evaluation by Council. 
 
Componentisation of Infrastructure assets 

 
All infrastructure assets are unbundled into their significant components in order to 
depreciate all major components over the expected useful lives. The cost of each 
component is estimated based on the current market price of each component, 
depreciated for age and condition and recalculated to cost at the acquisition date if known 
or to the date of initially adopting the standards of GRAP. 
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1.31. TAXES – VALUE ADDED TAX 
 

 Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value added tax. 
The net amount of Value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 
is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.  

 
1.32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 

Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements represents the balance 
committed to capital projects on reporting date that will be incurred in the period 
subsequent to the specific reporting date. 
 

1.33. AMENDED DISCLOSURE POLICY 
 

 Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary based 
on the relevance of any such amendment to the format and presentation of the financial 
statements. The principal amendments to matters disclosed in the current financial 
statements include fundamental errors, and the treatment of assets financed by external 
grants. 

 
 









































































































































1

Sufficient supporting documentation not submitted for 
audit in support of: a) Existence of debtors; and b) 
Receivables in respect of Chris Hani District Municipality 
service authority. 

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Controls should be put in place to ensure only valid debtors who 
exist are reported on.

Lennox Pakade, Sibongile Takane, 
Sulene du Toit

Budget and 
Treasurry 31-May-13

2

Sufficient supporting documentation not submitted for 
audit in support of the provision for landfill sites

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

The landfill site should be registered, and a proper calculation 
should be done by the engineer. Community Director/CFO All Directorates 31-May-13

3
The Municipality did not ave adequate systems in place 
to identify and disclose irregular expenditure.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Process should be in place to ensure irregulre expenditure are 
detected and reported.

SCM Unit - Phumza Bacela
Budget and 
Treasurry 31-Dec-12

4
Workmens compensation has not been paid for quite 
some years.  Contingent liability was disclosed.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Confirmation should be obtained regarding the status of the Municipality 
and the excact amount due should be confirmed and paid.

HR Director
Corporate 
Services 28-Feb-13

5 The municipality suffered a significant electricity loss.
Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Reasons for the major losses should be identified and solutions 
should be implemented.

Technical Director/CFO

Technical 
Services 31-May-13

6 Set targets are not properly reported on or not being achie
Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

All set targets should be reported on and if not met, proper 
corrective measures should be put in place

MM Office of the 
Municipal 
Manager 31-May-13

7

Expenditure was incurred in exess of the limits of the 
amonts provided for in the votes of the approved budget.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Controls should be put inplace to prevent any unauthorised expenditure.  
Proper budgeting should be done

All Directors All Directorates 28-Feb-13

8

The financial statements submitted for auditing were not 
prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 
requirements of section 122 of the MFMA.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Financial statements submitted should comply with section 122 of the 
MFMA

CFO
Budget and 
Treasurry 31-Aug-13

9

the municipal council did not adopt an oversight report 
containing comments on the annnual report within two 
months from the dae on which the 2010-2011 annual report 
was tabled, as required by section 129(1) of the MFMA

The oversight report should be adopt within the legislative time frames. MM

Office of the 
Municpal 
Manger 30-Mar-13

10

The accounting officer did not make public the council's
oversight report on the 2010-2011 annual report within
seven days of its adoption, as required by section 129(3)
of the MFMA

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Oversight report should be made public within the legislative time
frames

MM

Office of the 
Municpal 
Manger 15-Apr-13

11

The annual performance report for the year under review 
does not include a compoarison with the previous 
financial year as required by section 46(1)(b) of the MSA

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Performance report should be compared with the prior year on reporting 
and should be disclosed as such

MM
Office of the 
Municpal 
Manger 31-Aug-13

12

Sufficient audit evidence could not be obtained to 
confirm that the audit committee: a) advised the council, 
political office bearers, accounting officer and 
management staff of matters relating to internal financial 
control and internal audits b) met at least four times a 
year.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Sufficient audit evidence should be kept to proof the the audit committee 
did comply with all their roles and responsibilities.

MM

Office of the 
Municpal 
Manger 28-Feb-13

13

The competency of financial and suply chain 
management officials wer not assessed promtly in order 
to identify and address gaps. The municipality did not 
submit a report on compliance with prescribed 
competency levels to NT

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Competency gaps shouls be identified timeously and the prescribed 
competency  levels should be reported to NT

HR Director/CFO

Corporate 
Services/Budget 
and Treasury 
office 28-Feb-13

14

The performance agreement of the senior manger: 
Community Manager, who did not have the minimum 
competencies, did not include the attainment of 
minimum competencies as a performance target.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

The performance agreement of the Manager Community manager 
should be amended. MM

Office of the 
Municipal 
Manager 28-Feb-13

15

Bonusees were awared to the municipal manager and 
senior managers directly accountable to the municpal 
manager withou the annual report being tabled and 
adopted by council.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

Bonusses should only be paid out after approval of annual report MM
Office of the 
Municipal 
Manager 28-Feb-13

16

The acounting officer did not take effective steps to 
prevent unauthorised, irregular and fruitless ans wasteful 
expenditure. Matters affecting the 

auditor's report Internal control

Process should be in place to ensure unauthorsed, irregular, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure are detected and reported.

MM/CFO Office of the 
Municipal 
Manager/Budget 
and Treasury 
Office 31-Jan-13

17
The SCM policy of the municipality did not comply with 
the minimum requirements of SCM Regulations.

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

SCM policy should be adopted that comply with the minimum 
requirements as set out by SCM regulations.

CFO
Budget and 
Treasurry 31-Jan-13

18

The municipality did not timeously submit project 
registration forms for projects intended implementing in 
the financial year under review in respect of the municpal 
infrastructure grant, to the Department of Local 
government, as required by the DORA Grant 
Frameword, Gazette No. 34280

Matters affecting the 
auditor's report Internal control

All projects should be registered timeously.

Technical Director

Technical 
Services 30-Apr-13

RemarksDue dateRecommendations: Directorate No. COMAF
Impact on Audit 

Report
Classification Responsible officials
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1. INTRODUCTION  

Section 46(2) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 requires of municipalities to 
compile an annual performance report which must form part of the municipality’s annual report. The report as 
outlined hereunder seeks to outline the municipality’s performance in relation to predetermined targets for the 
year ending on 30 June 2012. The following report is a consolidated report of all departments. 
 
The Municipal Systems Act requires that all Municipalities:·  

 Develop a Performance Management System,  
 Set target and monitor and review performance based on indicators linked to their IDP; 
 Incorporate and report on a set of general/national indicators prescribed by the Minister responsible 

for local government 
 Conduct on a continuous basis, an internal audit of all performance measures 
 Have their annual performance report audited by the Auditor-General 

 
This report provides a summary of the performance of the municipality on annual targets for the year ending 
on the 30th June 2012. These targets are set inline with the Integrated Development Plan, the Budget and the 
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) in order to confirm that the implementation of 
strategic plans are aligned with the set strategies, objectives of the IDP and optimal utilization of the budget. 
 
The reported results require further analysis to determine any deficiencies and/or causes thereof and what 
corrective action to be taken to ensure improvement in the service provided by the Municipality. 
 
It is also important to note that these results as contained in the next section (Appendix A) of the report is to 
be audited by internal audit. 
 
The Performance Measurement Report that follows provides results on all the  key performance indicators 
and performance measures broadly categorised in 5 Key Performance Areas viz a viz : 
 

1. Basic Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development 
2. Local Economic Development 
3. Municipal Transformation & Institutional Development 
4. Financial Viability and Management, and 
5. Good Governance and Public Participation 
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2010/11 Targets No. Achieved No. Not 
Achieved 

Total 2011/12 Targets No. Achieved No. Not 
Achieved 

Total  

Municipal 
Manager 

 

12 
 

3 
 

15 
 

Municipal 
Manager 
 

12 
 

6 
 

 
18 

Budget & 
Treasury 

 
19 

2 
 

21 
 

Budget & 
Treasury 
 

15 
 

4 
 

19 
 

Corporate 
Services 

 

10 6 16 Corporate 
Services 

9 6 15 

Community 
Services 

 

15 4 19 Community 
Services 

13 6 19 

Technical 
Services 

9 2 11 Technical 
Services 

9 3 12 

Total 
 

65  82 Total 58 25 83 

 
 
It is hoped that the above measures will go a long way in improving the performance of the municipality during 
the 2012/13 financial year 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
…………………………        …………………… 
 
Similo  Dayi          K Nqiqhi 
Municipal Manager         Mayor 
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KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRUSTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicator 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
Needed in 
Terms of 

Unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

WATER & SANITATION 
To ensure that 80% 
of households have 

access to clean  
basic water supply 

by 2010 

Facilitate 
implementation 
of water supply 
projects by the 

CHDM  

% of budget 
committed by 

CHDM 
actually spent 

Report to 
council 

100%  No reports are 
coming forth 
from CHDM 

WSP Business 
Plan to be re-

discussed 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

Springgroove 
Water Supply 

To ensure 
completion of 
Springgroove 
water supply 
by the end of 

June 2012 

Completion 
report 

100% Budget included 
in the draft 

Business Plan 

Development 
WSP Business 

Plan did not 
follow the 

correct process

WSP Business 
Plan to be re-

discussed 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

Hofmeyr water 
supply 

% budget 
spent of 
available 
budget 

Expenditure 
report 

100% No reports are 
coming forth from 

CHDM 

 Engage 
CHDM at 

political level 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

Tarkastad 
bucket 

eradication  

% budget of 
the bucket 
eradication 

funds actually 
spent 

Monthly reports No budget 
was 
provided for 
this project 
by the WSA 

No reports are 
coming forth from 
CHDM and there 

is no funding 

CHDM need to 
budget for this 

project 

Engage 
CHDM at 

political level 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 
To ensure allocated 

MIG is utilized to 
improve the living 
conditions of our 

people  

Construction of 
Zola village 

Sports facility  

Sports facility in 
Zola village by 

June  2012 Reports to council 

100%  
N/A 

Project 
completed  

 
N/A 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

 
Rehabilitation of 

access roads 
and stormwater 

% Mitford Access 
Roads 

rehabilitated by 

Completion report 100%  
N/A 

Project 
completed  

 
N/A 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 
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KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRUSTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicator 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
Needed in 
Terms of 

Unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

in Mitford village  
 

the end of June 
2012 

Building of a 
community hall in 

Thembalethu 
village 

 

Community hall 
in place by end 
of June 2012 

Completion report 99% Community 
complained of 
size  

Size has been 
extended 

 Technical 
Services 
Manager 

 Erection of 
streetlights in 
Matyhantya  

Number of 
streetlights 

erected by end 
of June 2012 

Completion 
report 

100% N/A No corrective 
measures needed 

Top up funding to 
cover the whole 

area 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

 Upgrading of 
Hofmeyr Town 

Hall  

Hofmeyr 
town hall 

upgraded by 
June 2012 

Completion 
report 

20% Tenders above 
the budgeted 

amount tender 
committees also 
delayed this by 
not sitting on 

time 

Down-scaling of 
scope of work and 

negotiation with 
responsive 
tenderers  

Technical support 
form CFO and the 

DBSA Expect 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

HOUSING  AND LAND USE MANAGEMENT 

To facilitate 
delivery of a mix of 

housing option 

BP for 
development of 

sector plan 
developed and 

lodged with Dept. 
Human 

Settlements 

Business plan 
developed by 

June 2011 
Business plan  

100% 

Finalized  and 
submitted to the 

dept. 

  

Community 
Services 
Manager 

Number of 
housing 

implementation 
meetings 
attended  

number of 
housing planning 

and 
implementation 

meetings 

Implementation 
report 

100% Layout plan 
approved by 
council as 
amended 

DM committed to 
address bulk 

service 

High level 
engagement  
meeting took 
place in Feb 
between the DM 

Community 
Services 
Manager 
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KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRUSTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicator 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
Needed in 
Terms of 

Unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

attended by June 
2012 

and Tsolwana 

Review land use 
management 
plan within the 

SDF to 
incorporate 

housing priorities 
by March 2012 

Land use 
management 

plan in place by 
March 2012 

Land use 
management plan 

 
 

100%  

  

Community 
Services 
Manager 

ELECTRICITY  
To ensure 
improved 
household and 
business access to 
electricity supply 

Implement house 
connections in 

Matyhantya 

% progress 
towards 

completion  

Number of 
households actually 

connected  
100%  

 Create awareness 
on the no. of 
houses to be 
connected 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

To ensure 
improved 

household and 
business access to 

electricity supply 

Provide free 
basic electricity 

to approved 
indigents 

Number of 
indigents 

supplied with 
electricity 

Indigent register – 
bi-annual review 

100% 
All registered 
indigent receive 
FBE 

  Technical 
Services 
Manager 

Communicate to 
Eskom priority 

areas for 
expansion of 

coverage 
 

Inventory of 
priorities 

established and 
lodged with 

ESKOM 

Inventory list 
approved by 

council 

Priority List 
communicated 

to Eskom 

Field work being 
conducted in all 

affected wards to 
establish priority 

areas 

 Assistance from 
councillors and 

ward committees 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

EXPANDED PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMME 
To promote labour 

intensive 
infrastructure 

delivery methods 

Facilitate delivery 
of EPWP  

Number of jobs 
created while 
implementing 

EPWP 

48 Job Creation 
through EPWP 

41 full-time 
equivalent jobs 

7 further 
recruitment will 
be done from 

February 2012 

Uncertainty about 
stipend to be paid 

An additional 
funding is needed 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

 oversee % of targeted Quarterly Progress 100% Service provider DEA prolonged District office of Community 
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KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRUSTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicator 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
Needed in 
Terms of 

Unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

Greening and 
beautification 
project 

areas actually 
beautified by 
June 2012 

reports appointed, BP 
developed and 

submitted 

process of 
approval of BP 

DEA to facilitate 
progress with their 

National office 

Services 
Manager 

REFUSE COLLECTION & WASTE MANAGEMENT 
To provide 

affordable and 
reliable refuse and 

waste collection 
service 

Legalize existing 
landfill sites in 
Hofmeyr and 

Tarkastad 

The two existing 
landfill sites 

registered by 
June 2012 

Quarterly progress 
reports and a 
registration 
certificate 

Registration 
Certificate 

applied for but 
not yet 

received 

Assessment of 
landfill sites 

conducted and 
application or 

registration done 

Additional funding 
is needed 

High level 
engagement 

between Tsolwana 
and the service 

provider is needed 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

CLEANSING 
To clean our public 
places and streets 

Cleaning of 
public places and 
streets 

% budget 
actually utilized  

Expenditure 
report 99%of budget 

utilized 

Hofmeyer is this 
project delaying 

due to their 
conflicts  

 Council 
to intervene 
urgently 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

CEMETRIES 
To provide effective 
cemetery service 

Conclude the 
feasibility study & 

implement 
(Hofmeyr + 
Tarkastad) 

Progress on 
implementation 

Project progress 
report 

100%  

Funding  Council to budget 
for this through 

MIG 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
To facilitate 

provision and 
management of 

community facilities 

Manage and 
maintain existing 

halls 

% budget 
actually spent to 

maintain the 
existing 

community halls 

Expenditure report 
100% 
expenditure on 
budgeted 
amount  

100% 

Technicians still 
busy with 

assessment 

Top up funding is 
needed  

Community 
Services 
Manager 

Manage and 
maintain existing 

municipal 
buildings 

Maintenance 
budget actually 
spent by June 

2012 

 Maintenance 
budget expenditure 

report  

100% 
expenditure on 

budgeted 
amount 

Lack of technical 
support 

 Top up funding is 
needed. 

Community 
Services 
Manager 
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KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY & INFRUSTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicator 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
Needed in 
Terms of 

Unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

To lobby CHDM 
for establishment 
and equipping of 

a localized 
firefighting center  

Number of 
meetings 
attended 

Minutes of 
meetings attended 

Two meetings 
One meeting 
held so far to 
identify site 

Funding High level 
engagement with 

CHDM 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

DISASTER MANAGEMENT 
To ensure effective 
response to 
disasters 

Avail budget for 
disaster 

% budget spent 
on disaster 
management by 
June 2012  

Budgeted amount 
for the disaster 
management  

100% 
expenditure on 

budgeted 
amount 

 

 Additional funding 
is needed. 

Community 
Services  

Enter into a 
service level 
agreement on 
disaster 
management 
with CHDM 

SLA by June 
2012 

Service Level 
Agreement 

     20% 

Lack of clarity as 
to who is 
responsible 
between LM and 
DM 

 High level 
engagement 

between LM & DM 
so as to clarify 

roles  

Community 
Services 
Manager 

 To monitor and 
conserve 
environment  

Develop 
environmental 
management 
sector plan  

Draft 
Management 
Plan in by 30 
June 2012 

Draft Management 
Plan 

     0% 
No dedicated 
funding to this 
programme 

 Funding to be 
provided in the 

next revised 
budget 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

 
Public Transport, Traffic, Safety and Security 

To promote and 
support agricultural 

development 

Participate in the 
local policing 

forum 

No. of meetings 
attended 

2 meetings  2 meetings 
No invitations 

extended to us 

CPF to invite us to 
their meetings 

 Community 
Services 
Manager 
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KPA 2: LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
Measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
To facilitate local 
economic growth 
and development 

Develop 
implementation 
plan based on  
LED strategy 

Implementation 
plan with 
budgeted 
projects  

Funding available 
and LED 

implementation 
plan  

LED 
Implementatio
n plan in place 

FUNDING 

Inadequate 
funding for LED 

LED to be 
prioritized & 

funded through 
MIG 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

 
Revitalization of 

Tentergate 
Irrigation scheme 

 Functional 
revitalized 
irrigation 
schemes 

Quarterly reports 4 reports  Funding 

 High level 
engagement is 

needed between 
Tsolwana and 

CHDM 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

Participate in 
support initiatives 

by DoA 

Number of 
meetings 
attended 

Minutes of DoA 
meetings attended 

2 sets of 
minutes 

 Meetings are not 
sitting as 
scheduled 

 High level 
engagement is 

needed between 
Tsolwana and 

DOA 

Community 
Services 
Manager 

AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 

To promote and 
support agricultural 

development 

Lobby CHDM 
and DoA for 
funding of 

revitalization of 
local schemes 

Tentergate  
irrigation 
schemes 
revitalized  

Quarterly reports 
on operational 

plans 
4 Reports  Funding 

 High level 
engagement is 

needed between 
Tsolwana and 

CHDM 

Community 
Services 
Manager 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

INTERNAL AUDIT  
To establish an 
internal audit 

function capacity 

To produce 
internal audit 
reports as per 
audit plan 
2011/12 

Quarterly reports 
submitted to MM 
by 30th of the 4th 

month 

Quarterly reports 
4 internal audit 

report  

Internal audit 
action plan and 
risk assessment 

completed. 

Delays in 
appointment of 

the Internal 
Auditing firm 

 
N/A 

Municipal 
Manager 

Appoint a Chief 
Internal Auditor   

Chief Internal 
Auditor 

appointed by 30 
Dec 2011  

Appointment letter 
Internal auditor 

appointed 

Interviews were 
conducted & the 

first preferred 
candidate did not 
accept the offer. 
Position was re-

advertised 

N/A  
N/A 

Municipal 
Manager 

Compile risk 
register 

Risk register in 
place by end of 

first quarter 

Risk register with 
an implementation 

plan 

Risk register in 
place 

N/A 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
Municipal 
Manager 

Ensure internal 
auditing of 
quarterly 
performance 
reports 

Internal audit 
reports 

Internal audit 
reports 

Three 
Performance 
Information 

reports were 
audited 

N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

Municipal 
Manager 

Secure co-
sourcing o 
internal auditing 
functionf  

Internal auditing 
co-sourcing 

arrangement in 
place by end of 
the first quarter 

Service Level 
Agreement 

PWC was 
appointed to 

be a co-
sourcing 
partner 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
Municipal 
Manager 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT & AUDIT COMMITTEE 

To produce 
municipal annual 

report 

Review PMS 
policy and 
scorecards 

 PM policy and 
scorecards  

Revised PMS 
policy and 

departmental 
scorecards  

PM policy and 
s57 contracts 
adopted by  

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
Municipal 
Manager 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

Ensure 
cascading of 
PMS to level 3   

MOU signed with 
labor by 31 
March 2011 

Properly signed 
MOU 

MoU signed 
but 

implementation 
was hampered 

by the 
resistance 
from labor  

Resistance to 
participate in 
PMS by labor 

 
The matter needs 
to be escalated to 

other platforms  

 

Municipal 
Manager 

Facilitate 
functioning of the 
Audit Committee 

Number of 
meeting of the 

Audit committee  

Minutes of the 
Audit Committee 

meetings 

4 AC meetings 
were held 

during the year 
under review. 
Chairperson 
also assisted 
with mid-year 
performance 

reviews 

Resignation of 
Mrs de Wit 

almost hampered 
the operations of 

the AC 

A third member, 
in the name of Mr 

MA Zepe has 
since been 

recruited to serve 
on the AC 

 
Extra funding 

might be needed  

Municipal 
Manager 

MUNICIPAL OVERSITE & PLANNING  
To ensure that the 
municipality has 
functional and 

adequate 
operational offices 

Facilitate 
construction of 
office space and 
monitor 
 

Investigate the 
alternative 
sources of 

funding 

Funding sources to 
be presented to 

council 

Council 
adoption of 

funding 
sources 

Council not 
unanimously 
agreeing on 

utilization of MIG 
for office 

construction 

Council to be 
convinced on the 

importance of 
funding offices  

Council needs to 
budget for this 

project Municipal 
Manager 

Review IDP 

5year  IDP 
adopted by 
council by Jun  
2012 

IDP document  100% 
Process Plan 
adopted by 

council 

 
N/A 

 
N/A Municipal 

Manager 

Undertake 
strategic 
operation 
planning  

Stratplan by 30 
June 2012 

Minutes of the 
Stratplan  

Stratplan 
delayed due to 

change of 
arrangements 

0% 

 
N/A 

 
N/A Municipal 

Manager 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

Facilitate 
construction and 
opening of a 
local licensing 
and testing 
center in 
Tarkastad  

Appointment of a 
service provider 

Grade A licensing 
designs. 

Consultants 
were 

appointed & 
designs are in 

place 

Council does not 
agree with the 
funding of this 

project from the 
MIG 

Council to provide 
alternative 

funding sources 
for this project if it 

cannot be 
financed from 

MIG  

Budget  

Municipal 
Manager 

Provision of 
continuous 
leadership and 
oversight to 
municipal 
administration 

S57 manager 
contracts signed 
by 31 Aug 2010 

Properly signed 
s57 contracts 

5 
Performance 
contracts are 

properly signed 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A Municipal 
Manager 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT 
 Facilitate 

compilation and 
submission of a 
business case to 
national treasury 
neighborhood 
development 
fund  

Small town 
revitalization 
proposal in place 
by Dec 2011 

Small town 
revitalization 

proposal submitted 
to neighborhood 

development  

No progress 

CHDM was 
approached and 
agreed to assist, 
unfortunately the 

Town Planner 
died in a car 

crash & there is 
no replacement 

at this stage 

  

Municipal 
Manager 

GOOD GOVERNANCE 
To ensure that 
communities of 
Tsolwana have 
easy access to 

government 
services  

Lobby GCIS to 
commit to the 
project  

Commitment 
secured from 
GCIS 

Written 
confirmation from 

GCIS 

0%. This 
programme is 
experiencing 

problems 
provincially  

No direction 
provided by the 

OTP. 

OTP to be 
engaged 

 

Municipal 
Manager 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

 

Organize 
quarterly Mayoral 
Talkshows  

Mayoral Talk 
shows to to be 
held once per 
quarter 

SLA with a Radio 
station 

 
4 

1 Talkshow has 
been 

successfully held 

Political instability 
in some wards 

make it 
impossible to 
arrange the 
talkshows 

 

Municipal 
Manager 

Produce 
quarterly 
newsletter 

Quarterly 
newsletter 
produced by 
Sept  2011 

Newsletter  0 
Lack of in-house 

skills 

Advertisement to 
be placed before 

end January 2012 

Communication 
Officer needed to 

co-ordinate 
communication 

activities 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 Ensure 
sustainable 
administrative 
support to 
council  

Signed council 
minutes by the 
Mayor at every 
Ordinary Council 
meeting 

Properly signed 
council minutes 

100% 100% 

All minutes were 
properly signed  

 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

Ensure standing 
committees 
minutes are 
signed by 
portfolio heads 

Standing 
committee 
minutes at every 
meeting of the 
standing 
committees 

Properly signed 
standing 

committees 
minutes 

100% 100% 

Finance  & Admin 
minutes are 

signed a 
challenge might 

exist on 
Community & 

Technical 
Services 

 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
To establish a 

functional record 
and archiving 

system Install record 
management and 
archive system 

Record 
management 

system installed 
Records 100% 

Lack of in-house 
skills 

Department of 
Local 

Government has 
been approached 

to assist & has 
commenced with 

the SCM 
processes 

Preparations for 
implementation of 
the project have 
commenced with 

workshops for 
relevant staff 

Corporate 
Services 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

 

Town Planning 

 Establish 
internal capacity 
by outsourcing in 
the interim and 
latter appointing 

a full-time 
planner  

Signed SLA 1 100% 

  

Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 
Facilitate good 
labour relations 
in the workplace 

Local Labor 
Forum facilitated 

to resolve the 
current impasse 
by 30 June 2011 

Minutes of LLF 
meetings 

3 50% 

Meetings are held 
regularly 

 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 Ensure 
continuous 
compliance with 
Occupational 
Health & Safety 
Act requirements  

Quarterly site 
inspection 

conducted and 
reported upon 

regularly 

Reports  4 0% 

No reporting is 
taking place at 

the moment 

The whole Health 
& Safety 

arrangement has 
to be revived 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 

Codify By-Laws 
Booklet with By-
Laws by June 

2011 

By Laws in one 
book  

60% 40% 

Advert was 
placed in January 

2012 but there 
were delays with 
tender evaluation 
and the budget 

availed 

Enough budget 
must be availed by 

council Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 Invite legal firms 
to register in the 
supplier 
database of the 
municipality 

An advert inviting 
legal firms to 
register in the 
database of the 
municipality 

List of lawyers who 
registered in the 

database 
100% 0% 

Advert to be 
placed before the 
end of January 

2012 

 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

ICT 

To ensure 
functional ICT 

Lobby service 
providers to 

upgrade 

Letter to service 
providers issued 

inviting their 

Improved 
broadband 
connectivity 

  
  

CFO 
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KPA 3: MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Priority Area Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

Tarkastad mast 
for better 

broadband 
connectivity 

support 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT & TRANSFORMATION 
To develop and 
transform our 
human capital 

Implement WSP 

Reviewed WSP 
& implementation 
report submitted 

annually  

WSP & 
implementation 

report approved by 
council 

100% 0% 

Traffic Officers 
Course 
CPMD 
Management 
Development 
Programme   

 

Corporate 
Services 

Capacitate ward 
committees 

% of ward  
committees  

trained 

Certificates and/ or 
training manuals 

100% 20% 

Induction for the 
existing ward 

committees was 
conducted 

 
Corporate 
Services 

Develop HR 
development 
strategy in line 
with WSP 

Strategy in place HR Strategy 100% 100% 

Implementation is 
still a challenge at 

this stage 

 
Corporate 
Services 

Review EEP and 
set equity targets 
and report 

EEP revised with 
new targets 

EEP 
Revised EEP 

adopted 
80% 

Draft review   
Corporate 
Services 
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KPA 4: FINANCIAL VIABILITY & MANAGEMENT 
Priority Areas Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
To ensure effective 
management and 

utilization of 
municipal financial 

resources at all 
times 

        
To ensure 
monthly 
reconciliation f 
votes with 
cashbook  

Monthly 
reconciliation of 

cashbooks 

12 monthly 
reconciliation 

reports 

12 monthly 
reconciliation 

reports 
submitted 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A CFO 

Accredited 
training for staff 
in critical areas 
(SCM), in line 
with WSP 

Number of staff 
actually trained 

Competency 
certificates issued 

to participants 
6  

3 employees 
already 

graduated with 
SAICA & 3 other 

employees to 
complete CPMD 

by Dec 2012 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

Recruit and offer 
learnerships in 
Finance 
Department  

Number of 
interns actually 

recruited 

Employment 
contracts 

5 5 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

Produce s71 
(MFMA) monthly 
budget 
statements 
 

Monthly budget 
statements 

reports submitted 
to the Mayor by 
the 10th of each 

month 

S71 reports signed 
by the Mayor 

12 s71 reports 
produced 

during the year 
under review 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

To produce 
2011/2012 s72 
report (Midyear) 
by January 2012 
 

2011/12 S72 
produced by 25 

Jan 2010 

Draft S72 report by 
25 Jan 2012 

S72 adopted 
by council 

0% 

  

CFO 

To produce 
GRAP compliant 
Annual Financial 
Statements 
For 2011/2012 

GRAP compliant 
Annual Financial 

Statements  
 

For 2011/2012 

GRAP compliant 
Annual Financial 

Statements by  31 
August 2012 

To be reported 
during the first 
quarter 2012-

13 

0% 

  

CFO 
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KPA 4: FINANCIAL VIABILITY & MANAGEMENT 
Priority Areas Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

by 31 August 
2012 
Produce annual 
budget for 
2012/2013, in 
line with the 
provisions of the 
MFMA 

2012/13 annual 
budget  produced 
by 30 June 2012 

Approved Budget 
document for 

2012/13 compliant 
with National 

Treasury 
requirements 

Council 
approved 

Budget 0n 31 
May 2012 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

Produce annual  
SDBIP for 
2012/2013 in line 
with the 
provisions of the 
MFMA 

2012/13 SDBIP 
produced by 30 

July 2012 

SDBIP document 
compliant with 

National Treasury 
requirements 

Council 
approved 

SDBIP on 31 
May 2012 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

Review budget 
related policies to 
be adopted with 
the budget  

All budget related 
policies reviewed 
by 30 June 2012 

Council resolution 
adopting budget 
related policies 

Council 
approved 

Budget policies 
on 31 May 

2012 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A CFO 

Action plan for 
responding to 
audit queries 
10/11 

Action adopted 
by management 

by 31 March 
2012 

Action Plan 

Approved 
action plan by 
council by 31 
March 2012 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

REVENUE MANAGEMENT 
To improve 

municipal revenue  Implement  
2010/2011 
supplementary 
valuation roll 

Implementation 
of 2010/2011 

supplementary 
valuation roll 

PF 03 report as 
proof that 

supplementary 
valuation has been 

captured on the 
system 

2010/2011 
supplementary 
valuation roll 
captured on 
the system 

100% 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A 
CFO 

Provide Free 
Basic Electricity 
to approved 
indigents in 

Free Basic 
Electricity to 
households 
supplied by 

List of ESKOM 
supplied 

households 
receiving FBE to 

Updated list 0% 

  

CFO 
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KPA 4: FINANCIAL VIABILITY & MANAGEMENT 
Priority Areas Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

ESKOM supplied 
areas ( Hofmeyr) 
 

ESKOM by 30 
June  2012 

council and 
approved 

Develop revenue 
improvement 
strategy 
 

 To Develop 
revenue 
improvement 
strategy 

 

Strategy 

Revenue 
enhancement 

strategy 
completed 

0% 

No dedicated 
funding as yet 

Engagement with 
DM for funding 

CFO 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
To provide policy 

guidelines for 
effective 

procurement of 
goods and services 

        

Review of the 
SCM policy 

Revised policy 
Revised policy and 

workshop 

SCM policy 
revised and 

adopted 
0% 

Workshop 
organized but was 

postponed 

 
CFO 

Database 
registration of 
suppliers 

Invitation (Ad) for 
supplier 

registration  
Advertisement 

Advert for 
registration 

issued 
100%  

  
CFO 

compile SCM 
report as per 
national treasury 
requirements 

Monthly reports 
produced and 

submitted to NT 
Monthly reports  12 5 Reports 

  

 

RISK & ASSETS MANAGEMENT 
To provide for 

effective 
management of our 

risk and assets 

Conduct risk 
assessment 

To Conduct risk 
assessment 
workshop 

To Conduct risk 
assessment 
workshop 

Risk 
assessment 
workshop 

conducted by 
PWC 

100% 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

N/A CFO 

 To implement 
GRAP and 
update assets 
register  

Infrastructure 
register GRAP 
compliant by 
June 2012 

GRAP compliant 
infrastructure 

register approved 
by council 

Approved 
GRAP 

compliant 
asset register 

Loose assets 
counted 

 Need to appoint a 
service provider to 

assist 
CFO 
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KPA 5: GOOD GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Priority Areas Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 Review and 

implement 
communication 
strategy 

Communication 
strategy 

Records 
Communicatio

n strategy 
adopted 

100% 

N/A -  
implementation is 
still a challenge 

Inclusion of a 
Communication 

Officer post on the 
organogram 

Corporate 
Services 

Facilitate seating 
of the IGRF 

Number of IGRF 
meetings held by 

June 2011 

Minutes of the 
IGRF meetings 

held 

4 IDP Reps 
Forum 

meetings were 
attended by 

different sector 
departments 

Only few sector 
departments 

attend IGFR/ IDP 
Reps Forum 

meetings 

 Pressure to be put 
on sector 

departments to 
attend IGRF 

meetings through 
OTP 

Municipal 
Manager 

     
  

 

To develop and 
enforce local by-
laws and policies 

Codify By-Laws 
Booklet with By-
laws printed by 

June 2011  
Booklet of By-laws 60% 

Advert was 
placed in 

January 2012 but 
there were 

delays in terms 
of SCM process 
and the budget 

available is 
insufficient 

 Enough budget 
must be availed 

Corporate 
Services 

To implement 
special 

programmes 

Design and 
implement 

Special 
programmes to 
support Youth, 

Women, 
Disabled and 

other vulnerable 
groups in our 

society 
 

SPU plan of 
action 

Action Plan 100%  

  

Community 
Services 

Thusong Centre & Lobby  GCIS to Engage at least 3 Minutes of This    Municipal 
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KPA 5: GOOD GOVERNANCE & PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Priority Areas Baseline Key 

Performance 
Indicators 

Targets Progress 
Achieved 

Blockages Corrective 
measures 

Support 
needed in 
terms of 

unblocking 

Responsible 
Official 

Customer Care commit  support 
for the this 
initiative 

potential tenants engagement 
meetings 

programme 
has stagnated 

provincially 

Manager 
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